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PART I

Item 1. Business

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements regarding our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. #fg@uch as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “@ns,”
“believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “thinks,” “may,” “could,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “continues,” “p  otential,”
“likely,” “opportunity” and similar expressions owariations of such words are intended to identifyMard-looking
statements, but are not the exclusive means ofifigag forward-looking statements in this Annuad®rt.
Additionally, statements concerning future matsarsh as the development or regulatory approvalesy products
enhancements of existing products or technologfirsl party performance under key collaboration agments,
revenue and expense levels and other statemeragedieg matters that are not historical are forwalabking
statements.

”ou ”u ” ” i, ” ow ” o ”u

Although forward-looking statements in this AnnRabort reflect the good faith judgment of our masragnt,
such statements can only be based on facts amt$amirrently known by us. Consequently, forwarmklng
statements are inherently subject to risks and tat#ies and actual results and outcomes may diffaterially
from the results and outcomes discussed in or igatied by the forwar-looking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences in resaid outcomes include without limitation those désad under the
heading “Risk Factors” below, as well as those disged elsewhere in this Annual Report. Readersramed not to
place undue reliance on these forw-looking statements, which speak only as of the dathis Annual Report. We
undertake no obligation to revise or update anyvind-looking statements in order to reflect anyree
circumstance that may arise after the date of #riaual Report. Readers are urged to carefully nenaed consider
the various disclosures made in this Annual Repuanich attempt to advise interested parties ofritles and factor:
that may affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations and prospects.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated tdetielopment and commercialization of productseting
the extracellular matrix, or Matrix, for the endimaiogy, oncology, dermatology and drug deliveryrkeds. Our
existing products and our products under developmenbased primarily on intellectual property aavg the
family of human enzymes known as hyaluronidases.

Our operations to date have involved organizing staffing our operating subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc.,
acquiring, developing and securing our technolagy endertaking product development for our exispngducts
and a limited number of product candidates. Weinagtto increase our focus on our proprietary pcogipeline
and have expanded investments in our proprietarglymt candidates. We currently have multiple pretarly
programs in various stages of research and developrim addition, we have entered into a key pastrip with F.
Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche, lec.Roche, to apply Enhan?¢Technology to Roche’s
biological therapeutic compounds for up to 13 teegé/e have also entered into two key partnershigfsBaxter
Healthcare Corporation, or Baxter, to apply Enhargehnology to Baxter’s biological therapeutic caupd,
GAMMAGARD LIQUID ™ and to develop and supply active pharmaceuticakitignt, or API, for HYLENEX, a
registered trademark of Baxter International, TFeere are two marketed products that utilize ocintielogy:
HYLENEX, a product used as an adjuvant to increaselispersion and absorption of other injectedsiand
fluids, and Cumulas®, a product used fan vitro fertilization, or IVF. Currently, we receive onliyrited revenue
from the sales of HYLENEX and from the sales of A®the third party that produces Cumulase, intamto othel
revenues from our partnerships with Baxter and Boch

We have product candidates in the research, prealiand clinical stages, but future revenues fthensales of
these product candidates will depend on our aliitgevelop, manufacture, obtain regulatory appsofa and
successfully commercialize product candidates.ay e years, if ever, before we are able to obtgulatory
approvals for these product candidates. We hauvgred net operating losses each year since inggptith an
accumulated deficit of approximately $172.0 millias of December 31, 2009.

In January 2010, we filed a shelf registrationestagdnt on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-164215¢tvhi
allows us, from time to time, to offer and sellto5100.0 million of equity or debt securities. Wiay utilize this
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universal shelf in the future to raise capitaluad the continued development of our product caidil the
commercialization of our products or for other gaheorporate purposes. In June 2009, we sold appetely
$40.0 million of our common stock in a public offey at a price of $6.50 per share under a priolf segistration
statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-155W84¢h was filed in November 2008.

We reincorporated from the State of Nevada to theeDf Delaware in November 2007. Our principdices
and research facilities are located at 11388 Stwrréalley Road, San Diego, California 92121. Olepéone
number is (858) 794-8889 and our e-mail addresgaghalozyme.com Additional information about the
Company can be found on our website at www.halozgome, and in our periodic and current reports fikath the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. Cagiear current and periodic reports filed with BEC are
available at the SEC Public Reference Room at 40 Htreet, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, and oalat
www.sec.gov and our website at www.halozyme.com.

Technology

Our primary technology is based on our proprietagombinant human PH20 enzyme, or rHUPH20, a human
synthetic version of hyaluronidase. Hyaluronidee@senzymes (proteins) that break down hyalurooaHA,
which is a naturally occurring space-filling, gidd substance that is a major component of botmabtissues
throughout the body, such as skin and cartilage: admormal tissues such as tumors. The PH20 enizyane
naturally occurring enzyme that temporarily degeaé,, thereby facilitating the penetration and wkfibn of other
drugs and fluids that are injected under the skiim ¢he muscle. Our proprietary rHuPH20 technolggpplicable
to multiple therapeutic areas and may be usedttodxpand existing markets and create new oneséor
development of our own proprietary products. ThaRPH20 technology may also be applied to existird) an
developmental products of third parties through pastnerships.

Strategy

We are dedicated to the development and commezaian of both proprietary and partnered products
targeting the Matrix for the endocrinology, oncatpdermatology and drug delivery markets. By exjagdipon
our scientific expertise in the Matrix, we hopedevelop therapeutic and aesthetic drugs. Our |eagnee,
rHUPH20 hyaluronidase, facilitates the deliverynfgs and fluids through the Matrix and into ciatidn. While
rHUPH20 is the underlying drug delivery technolagyoth HYLENEX for generic small molecules andidis, and
Enhanze Technology for proprietary small and lamggecules, we are seeking ways to combine rHUPH#0 w
previously approved small molecule drugs to develew proprietary products, with potentially newgyst
protection.

We are also expanding our scientific work in thetii4sby developing other enzymes and agents thigeta
unique aspects of the Matrix, giving rise to potimiew molecular entities targeting indicationsmdocrinology,
oncology and dermatology. For instance, we areldpireg a formulation of rHUPH20 and insulin for ttieatment
of diabetes mellitus. We are also developing a R&@g version of the rHUPH20 enzyme, or PEGPH241, [dsts
longer in the bloodstream, and may therefore b&dtget solid tumors by clearing away the surrongdilA and
reducing the interstitial fluid pressure within mgalant tumors to allow better penetration by chdrampeutic
agents. In addition, we are developing a Matrix-ifydalg enzyme that targets components of the skith a
subcutaneous tissues that may have both theramewttiaesthetic applications within dermatology. léspects of
our corporate strategy include the following:

« Develop our own proprietary products based on éi2Penzyme and other new molecular entit
« Seek partnerships for our Enhanze Technology deligedy platform;
« Support product development and commercializatimhen our Roche Enhanze Technology collabora

« Support product development and commercializatimhen our Baxter BioScience Enhanze Technology
collaboration; an

» Support Baxte's commercialization of HYLENEX
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Products and Product Candidates

We have two marketed products and multiple prodantidates targeting several indications in vargiages
of development. The following table summarizes pnaprietary product and product candidates as agetiur
partnered product and product candidates:

Research/
Products and Therapeuntic Use ! Pre- Filed for = Marketed
Product Candidates Area Indication(s) | Clinical Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 | Approval | Product

Proprietary Product Candidates

Ultrafast Insulin;

Insulin-PH20 Endocrinology | Diabetes
Analog-PH20 Endocrinclogy | Diabetes
PEGPH2O Oncology Solid tumaors
HTI-5001 Dermatalogy | Aesthetic
medicine,
other
Chemophase & Oncology Bladder cancer

Partnered Product Candidates

Roche qup o 13 tgets e
Subcutancous

Herceptin® Oncology Breast cancer
Subcutaneous Oncology Modi=
MabThera® Hodgkin's
lvmphoma
Tanget “C" Undiselosed  Undisclosed
Baxter BioScience  |Immunology | Primany
GAMMAGARD ITHunG-
with ftHuPH20 delicieney
Approved Products
Baxter Medication | Various Small molecule
Delivery and
HYLENEX fluid delivery
Cumulase I vitro Intracyto-
frtilization plasmic spemm
injection

|| HiIR

Ultrafast Insulin Program

Our lead proprietary program focuses on the fortimareof rHUPH20 with prandial (mealtime) insulire the
treatment of diabetes mellitus. Diabetes mellituan increasingly prevalent, costly condition agged with
substantial morbidity and mortality. Attaining amintaining normal blood sugar levels to minimize tong-term
clinical risks is a key treatment goal for diabgtatients. Combining rHUPH20 with regular insubai¢h
combinations are referred to as “Insulin-PH26a rapid acting analog insulin (such combinatiaresreferred to ¢
“Analog-PH20")facilitates faster insulin dispersion in, and alpson from, the subcutaneous space into the var
compartment leading to faster insulin responsemking mealtime insulin onset faster, i.e., providi
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earlier insulin to the blood and thus earlier geetowering activity, a combination of insulin witHuPH20 may
yield a better profile of insulin effect, more likeat found in healthy, n«-diabetic people.

The primary goal of our ultrafast insulin prograsrté develop a best-in-class insulin product, with
demonstrated clinical benefits for type 1 and Deias mellitus patients, in comparison to the ecurséandard of
care analog products that participate in the grgv#id billion prandial insulin market. We are deyeig Insulin-
PH20 and Analod?H20 in parallel to explore a maximum range of gatteating opportunities. With a more rapi
absorbed, faster acting insulin product, we sealetoonstrate one or more significant improvemegitive to
existing treatment, such as improved glycemic adnkess hypoglycemia, and less weight gain. A nends Phase
1 and Phase 2 clinical pharmacology trials, angstegion trial-enabling treatment studies in castin with our
ultrafast insulin program are ongoing or plannédt will investigate the various attributes of msulin product
candidates. We plan on initiating additional stgdigth both Insulin-PH20 and Analog-PH20. The satu
and/or results from some of these trials are surzeibelow:

* In November 2009, we announced results from ous@Hheclinical study that demonstrated reduced
intrasubject absorption variability for the comhipa of lispro (Humalo@® ), a mealtime analog insulin, plus
rHUPH20 compared to subcutaneous injection ofdispone. The results demonstrated that timing aled
of early insulin absorption between doses admirgst¢o the same subjects on different occasions were
consistent when combined with rHuPH20 than lisghmiaistered alone. Intersubject variability for
pharmacokinetic and glucodynamic measures in thdysthowed a favorable trend for the combinatieprt
with rHUPH20 compared to lispro alone. The studyg wat designed to test statistical significance for
intersubject variability. Intrasubject variabilitgr glucodynamic measures in the study also dematest
favorable trends for the combination of lispro witluPH20 compared to lispro alone, and one endpoint
measure, the percent of total glucose administier&dep glucose levels constant during the firat foours,
reached statistical significance. Co-administrabbnHuPH20 with both regular insulin (Humul®R) and
lispro was well tolerated. The study enrolled 22altigy subjects who received two doses of threebfft
treatments: insulin lispro alone, regular insulithwHuUPH20, and insulin lispro with rHUPH20 in a
euglycemic glucose clamp trial design. All subjaatslerwent six clamp procedures. We presented these
study results at the Diabetes Technology Societgtimg in San Francisco in November 20

* In November 2009, we also announced results fronPbase 1 clinical study which investigated therat
insulin/rHUPh20 ratios. The results demonstratstefansulin absorption and increased peak insulin
concentrations after co-administration of rHuPH2thwnsulin lispro and regular human insulin congzhto
insulin lispro and regular human insulin alone. Embanced absorption effects were observed atalini
relevant insulin doses across a broad range of H20R.oncentrations. In addition, study results staw
accelerated insulin action as measured by glucdasion rates in this euglycemic glucose clampstud
Results of this study have been used to identifg@iimal rHuUPH20 dose for accelerating insulin apsgon.
We presented these study results at the Diabetdmdkgy Society meeting in San Francisco in Novemb
2009. The initial study results were presentethatmternational Diabetes Federation Congress int\al ir
October 2009

« In September 2009, we also announced results frarPPloase 2 clinical study in type 1 diabetic pasen
comparing lispro with and without rHUPH20 and reguhsulin with and without rHUPH20. These results
demonstrated faster insulin absorption and incebpsak insulin concentrations after co-administratf
rHUPH20 with lispro and rHUPH20 with regular insulStudy results also showed a significant redadtio
postprandial blood glucose levels following adntisigon of a standardized test meal, with improvetaén
both peak and total hyperglycemic excursions coetbéw lispro and regular insulin alone. Mean glecos
levels after the meal challenge remained withimentrtreatment targets throughout the eight host pwal
observation period. We presented these resultedEuropean Association for the Study of Diabeates i
Vienna in September 2009. The preliminary resutimfthe study of lispro with and without rHUPH20reve
presented at the American Diabetes Association (A63%h Scientific Sessions in New Orleans in JuD@o;

* In September 2009, we initiated a Phase 1 clirstaly that will assess the effects of three appt@randial
insulin analogs administered with rHUPH20 compadoceelach of the analogs alone, each deliverec
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standardized dose. This randomized, six-way cress-gesign, euglycemic clamp study will compare the
postprandial pharmacokinetics and glucodynamide@fnsulin analogs with and without rHUPH:

 In July 2009, we initiated a Phase 2 clinical studpatients with type 2 diabetes mellitus. Thisdamized
cross-over design study was designed to companeatprandial glycemic excursions following a
standardized test meal for three treatment regimesglin lispro with rHUPH20, regular insulin with
rHUPH20 and lispro alone, each delivered at arviddally optimized dose. This randomized, doubiad|
Phase 2 study will also investigate the pharmaetkis of each treatmer

« In May 2009, we initiated a Phase 2 clinical ttmcompare regular insulin with rHUPH20 to lisptoree.
After a one-month observation period that includese optimization, patients were randomized toleggu
insulin with rHUPH20 or lispro and treated for thmaonths. At the end of three months, patients wergse:
over to the other study treatment for another timeaths. The study will evaluate safety and effjci

PEGPH20

We are investigating PEGPH20, a new molecularyerai a candidate for the systemic treatment obtanich
in HA. PEGylation refers to the attachment of ptthydene glycol to our rHUPH20 enzyme, which exteitslalf
life in the blood from less than one minute to apgmately 48-72 hours. An estimated 20% to 40%aditisumors
including prostate, breast, pancreas and colonyasdignificant amounts of HA that forms a halelgoating over
the surface of the tumor cell. The quantity of Higuced by the tumor cells correlates with incrdasenor growtf
and metastasis and has been linked with tumor gss@n in some studies.

In preclinical studies, PEGPH20 has been showenmre the HA coating surrounding several tumorlgeks.
Treatment of PC3 (a prostate cancer cell line phaduces HA) tumobearing mice with PEGPH20 as a single a
demonstrated a slowing of tumor growth relativedatrols. Repeat dosing with PEGPH20 produced &isiesl
depletion of HA in the tumor microenvironment. Fomor models that did not produce HA, the presarce
PEGPH20 had no effect. Administration of the comatiom of PEGPH20 with docetaxel or with liposomal
doxorubicin in HA producing animal tumor models gwoed a significant survival advantage for the cioaifion
relative to either chemotherapeutic agent alone.

Additional studies have demonstrated that PEGPH20s@gnificantly reduce tumor interstitial fluidgzsure
(IFP) in an animal cancer model in a dose deperfdshton, achieving more than 85% reduction in IFP
following IV administration. Elevated tumor IFP hasen associated with poor patient prognosis asidtagce to
chemotherapeutic regimens. Therefore, based or Hrémal studies and other tests conducted by Malez
PEGPH20 may represent a potentially innovativetitneat approach against tumors that produce HA.

In the first quarter of 2009, we initiated a Phasdinical trial for our PEGPH20 program. This fins human
trial with PEGPH20 is a dosescalation, multicenter, pharmacokinetic and phaodgnamic, safety study, in whi
patients with advanced solid tumors are receivntigavenous administration of PEGPH20 as a singtetagased
on initial data from this trial, and after constitta with the FDA, lower doses of PEGPH20 are noupkyed at a
lower dose frequency.

Chemophase

Chemophase is an investigative drug being devel@geaabtential use in the treatment of patientdwit
superficial bladder cancer. Our Chemophase prog@mbines our rHUPH20 enzyme with mitomycin C, atytic
drug, for direct administration into the bladdemniediately after transurethral resection of bladderors, a standa
surgical treatment for the disease. Many bladd@oticells produce high quantities of HA and thestment to
remove the HA coating could increase their exposuraitomycin C. This may lead to a lower recureo€ the
cancer and a better prognosis for patients.

During the first quarter of 2009, we decided tdloeate certain resources previously budgeted foer@ophas
to other higher priority programs, such as ourafidtst insulin and PEGPH20 programs. We do not phaimitiating
any new clinical trials with Chemophase and wecameently exploring strategic alternatives that ailow the
Chemophase program to continue its clinical develk.
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Enhanze Technolog

Enhanze Technology, a proprietary drug deliveryagiclement approach using rHuPH?20, is a broad teagyol
that we have licensed to other pharmaceutical commpaWhen formulated with other injectable drugshanze
Technology can facilitate the subcutaneous disperand absorption of these drugs by temporarilyhomeflow
channels under the skin. Molecules as large anafdmeters may pass freely through the extraceloddrix,
which recovers its normal density within approxiglat24 hours, leading to a drug delivery platforimiet does not
permanently alter the architecture of the skin. phiecipal focus of our Enhanze Technology platfasithe use of
rHUPH20 to facilitate subcutaneous route of adrtri@i®n for large molecule biological therapeutissme of whicl
currently require intravenous administration. Pt&enefits of subcutaneous administration oséhkiologics
include life cycle management, patient conveniensgictions in infusion reactions and benefitsdapqs.

We currently have Enhanze Technology partnershitis Roche and Baxter and we are currently pursuing
additional partnerships with pharmaceutical comgsthat market or develop drugs that could befrefit injectior
via the subcutaneous route of administration.

Roche Partnership

In December 2006, Halozyme and Roche entered mirnhanze Technology partnership, or the Roche
Partnership. Under the terms of the Roche PartiperRoche obtained a worldwide, exclusive licertsddvelop an
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 withto thirteen Roche target compounds resulting fiioe
collaboration. Roche initially had the exclusivghti to apply rHUPH20 to only three pre-defined Roblologic
targets with the option to exclusively develop andhmercialize rHUPH20 with an additional ten tasg&oche
elected to add a fourth exclusive target to theedhariginal exclusive targets in December 2008afifth exclusive
target in June 2009.

Compounds directed at three of the Roche excluaigets are currently in clinical trials. Two conupads are
in Phase 1 clinical trials, and the third compoimith a Phase 3 clinical trial. In October 2009, ammounced the
commencement of the first Phase 3 clinical trialdf@ompound directed at an exclusive target. Phizse 3 clinical
trial is for a subcutaneously delivered versiofiRothe’s anticancer biologic, Herceptin (trastuzuma@he study
will investigate the pharmacokinetics, efficacy aadety of subcutaneous Herceptin in patients WHR2-positive
breast cancer as part of adjuvant treatment. Hercispapproved to treat HER2-positive breast caaoel currently
is given intravenously. Breast cancer is the mostraon cancer among women worldwide. Each year tiaire on
million new cases of breast cancer are diagnosettlwinle, and nearly 400,000 people will die of tisease
annually. In HER2-positive breast cancer, increageghtities of the HER2 protein are present orstiréace of the
tumor cells. This is known as ‘HER2 positivity’ aaffects approximately 20-25% of women with brezsicer.

In September 2009, Roche began a Phase 1 clinidiar a subcutaneous formulation of MabTh&ra
(rituximab). The study will investigate the pharmkinetics and tolerability of subcutaneous MabThernpatients
with follicular lymphoma as part of maintenanceatraent. Intravenously administered MabThera is @t for
the treatment of non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma (NHL), péyof cancer that affects lymphocytes, or whitetloells.
An estimated 66,000 new cases of NHL were diagnos#te U.S. in 2009 with approximately 125,000 reages
reported worldwide.

Additional information about the Phase 3 subcutasédderceptin and Phase 1 subcutaneous MabTheieatlin
trials can be found at www.clinicaltrials.gov and/w.roche-trials.com.

Roche retains the option to exclusively develop esrmercialize rHUPH20 with an additional eighgtts
through the payment of annual license maintenagee. Pending the successful completion of varibogal,
regulatory and sales events, Roche will be obldyjadenake milestone payments to us as well astsopalyments
on the sales of products that result from the gastmp.

Baxter Gammagard Partnership

GAMMAGARD LIQUID is a current Baxter product that indicated for the treatment of primary
immunodeficiency disorders associated with defecthe immune system. In September 2007, Halozymde a
Baxter entered into an Enhanze Technology partigerehthe Gammagard Partnership. Under the tefrtisi®
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partnership, Baxter obtained a worldwide, exclusisense to develop and commercialize product coatimns of
rHUPH20 with GAMMAGARD LIQUID. Pending the succegssEompletion of various regulatory and sales
milestones, Baxter will be obligated to make mi@st payments to us as well as royalty paymentb@sdles of
products that result from the partnership. Baxdeesponsible for all development, manufacturitigjaal,
regulatory, sales and marketing costs under then@agard Partnership, while we will be responsiblettie@ supply
of the rHUPH20 enzyme. In addition, Baxter hasatemproduct development and commercialization @tigns in
major markets identified in the Gammagard Licehsdanuary of 2009, we announced the commencenfient o
Phase 3 clinical trial for GAMMAGARD LIQUID with rdPH20, and in July 2009, we announced the complet
enrollment for this study.

HYLENEX Partnership

HYLENEX is a formulation of rHUPH20 that, when injed under the skin, facilitates the dispersion and
absorption of other injected drugs or fluids. IbRery 2007, Halozyme and Baxter amended certastiey
agreements relating to HYLENEX and entered int@w agreement for kits and formulations with rHuPH@Othe
HYLENEX Partnership. Pending the successful congretf a series of regulatory and sales eventsteBaxill be
obligated to make milestone payments to us asasgalbyalty payments on the sales of products #sailtrfrom the
partnership. Baxter is responsible for developmmatnufacturing, clinical, regulatory, sales and keting costs of
the products covered by the HYLENEX Partnership.Wilecontinue to supply Baxter with API for HYLENE
and Baxter will prepare, fill, finish and packag¥HENEX and hold it for subsequent distribution.@ctober 2009,
Baxter announced the commercial launch of HYLENEXombinant (hyaluronidase human injection) forinse
pediatric rehydration at the 2009 American Collef&mergency Physicians (ACEP) scientific asseniBlyston).
In addition, under the HYLENEX Partnership, Baxtas a worldwide, exclusive license to develop and
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 vidtixter hydration fluids and generic small moleadriegs,
with the exception of combinations with (i) bisppbsnates, (ii) cytostatic and cytotoxic chemothetsje agents
and (iii) proprietary small molecule drugs, thehtgyto which have been retained by Halozyme.

Cumulase

Cumulase is aex vivo(used outside of the body) formulation of rHuPH&0dplace the bovine (bull) enzyme
currently used for the preparation of oocytes (gggser to IVF during the process of intracytoplasmperm
injection (ICSI), in which the enzyme is an essginidbomponent. Cumulase strips away the HA thabsuas the
oocyte, allowing the clinician to then perform &SI procedure.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are essdnt@lr business. Our success will depend in padusrability
to obtain patent protection for our inventionspteserve our trade secrets and to operate withéringing the
proprietary rights of third parties. Our strategyta actively pursue patent protection in the Whistates and certain
foreign jurisdictions for technology that we beleto be proprietary to us and that offers us antiaiecompetitive
advantage. Our patent portfolio includes nine idspstents, one granted European patent and a nwhpending
patent applications. We are the exclusive licemddbe University of Connecticut under a patentexivg the DNA
sequence that encodes human hyaluronidase. Tleistpadpires in 2015. We have patent applicatiomgjpeéng to
recombinant human hyaluronidase and their methbdsaufacture which, if issued, would expire in 20®&/e
believe our patent filings represent a barrierrtmyefor potential competitors looking to utilizegse hyaluronidases.

In addition to patents, we rely on unpatented tisat@ets, proprietary know-how and continuing tedbgical
innovation. We seek protection of these trade $gegpeoprietary know-how and innovation, in pantough
confidentiality and proprietary information agreertse Our policy is to require our employees, divest
consultants, advisors, partners, outside scierddilaborators and sponsored researchers, othé&aashand other
individuals and entities to execute confidentialifreements upon the start of employment, conguttirother
contractual relationships with us. These agreenmotade that all confidential information develaper made
known to the individual or entity during the coursfehe relationship is to be kept confidential arud disclosed to
third parties except in specific circumstanceshincase of employees and some other partiesgteeraents
provide that all inventions conceived by the indisal will be our exclusive property. Despite the o these
agreements and our efforts to protect our intali@gbroperty, there will always be a risk of unawibhed use
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or disclosure of information. Furthermore, our gagcrets may otherwise become known to, or bgerkently
developed by, our competitors.

We also file trademark applications to protectrtaenes of our products and product candidates. These
applications may not mature to registration and bmaghallenged by third parties. We are pursuiadgemark
protection in a number of different countries artime world. There can be no assurances that eegisor
unregistered trademarks or trade names of our coynpal not infringe on third parties rights or whe acceptable
to regulatory agencies.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development expenses consistrpyimicosts associated with the development and
manufacturing of our product candidates, compeosatnd other expenses for research and develogreestnnel,
supplies and materials, costs for consultants aladed contract research, clinical trials, facitigsts and
amortization and depreciation. We charge all reteand development expenses to operations as taéycurred.
Our research and development activities are priynBréused on the development of our various prodaodidates

Since our inception in 1998 through December 3092@e have incurred research and development egpen
of $149.7 million. From January 1, 2007 through &aber 31, 2009, approximately 20% and 15% of csgaech
and development expenses were associated withretledapment of our ultrafast insulin and PEGPH2Gpod
candidates, respectively. Due to the uncertainghbitaining the U.S. Food and Drug AdministrationFBA, and
other regulatory approvals, our reliance on thiadtips and competitive pressures, we are unaldstimate with
any certainty the additional costs we will incuttfire continued development of our proprietary podandidates
for commercialization. However, we expect our reskeand development expenses to increase as admgiro
candidates advance into later stages of clinicatid@ment.

Manufacturing

We have existing supply agreements with contractufecturing organizations Avid Bioservices, Ina. Avid,
and Cook Pharmica LLC, or Cook, to produce bulkvagbharmaceutical ingredient, or API. These mactufars
each produce API under Good Manufacturing PractimesGMP, for clinical uses. In addition, Avid cently
produces API for commercialized products. Avid &wabk will also provide support for the chemistry,
manufacturing and controls sections for FDA andptegulatory filings. We rely on their ability smccessfully
manufacture these batches according to productfi¢ions and Cook has limited experience manuifiaet) our
API. In addition, as a result of our contractudigdtions to Roche, we will be required to sigrdintly scale up our
commercial API production at Cook during the next/fyears. The ability of Cook to obtain status a&MP-
approved manufacturing facility and the abilitybaith manufacturers to (i) retain their status ab1PGapproved
manufacturing facilities; (ii) to successfully sealp our API production; or (iii) to manufacturetAPI required by
our proprietary and partnered products and prodamctlidates is essential to our corporate strategy.

Sales and Marketing
HYLENEX

Baxter is responsible for execution of HYLENEX @tial development, sales and marketing strategyteBdoa:
indicated that it intends to build a strong clinifcundation with post-marketing trials and to edigcthe market on
the concept of difficult venous access. Post-margetlinical trials are continuing to explore thetgntial of
HYLENEX in additional medical settings. Examplegioé trials include the completed INFUSE-Pediatric
Rehydration study, completed INFUSE-LR study anahjgleted INFUSE-Morphine study. In addition, Baxter
recently completed enrollment of patients in a sdddNFUSE-Pediatric Rehydration Study, which isigesd to
evaluate the rehydration success rate (efficacg)safety in children treated with HYLENEX-augmented
subcutaneous fluid infusion compared to intraveroudsation. In October 2009, Baxter completed thenmercial
launch of HYLENEX recombinant (hyaluronidase hunrgaction) for use in pediatric rehydration at 2@09
American College of Emergency Physicians (ACEPgiiic assembly (Boston) in conjunction with palaliion of
data from the INFUSE-Pediatric Rehydration studi?#EDIATRICS. Continued roll out of HYLENEX in theajor
hospital market by a Baxter sales force will odou2010.
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Cumulase

We have an exclusive distribution agreement widlis&ributor of IVF reagents and media that seliectiy to
IVF clinics in both the United States and Europeerkets. During 2009, sales of Cumulase and APCfanulase
were approximately $514,000.

Competition
HYLENEX

Other manufacturers have FDapproved products for use as spreading agentsiding ISTA Pharmaceutica
Inc., with an ovine (ram) hyaluronidase, Vitr&geand Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc., with a ®vin
hyaluronidase, Amphada®¢. In addition, some commercial pharmacies compdwmduronidase preparations for
institutions and physicians even though compounmtegarations are not FDA-approved products. Some
compounding pharmacies do not test every batchmasfyet for drug concentration, sterility and ladkpgrogens. In
addition, HYLENEX is priced at a significant premiwcompared to the animal-derived hyaluronidasesently in
the marketplace. This price premium may slow maakieption of HYLENEX and make market penetration
difficult.

Cumulase

A key clinical selling point for Cumulase is thatiay eliminate the risk of animal pathogen trarssion and
toxicity inherent in slaughterhouse preparatioriee Tompeting enzymes are of animal origin, creadimg
opportunity for a recombinant human enzyme alté&vraaCumulase is priced at a premium comparedeatiimal-
derived products sold by leading IVF suppliers,ahihinay make market penetration difficult.

Government Regulations

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in §orebuntries regulate extensively the manufactocesale
of the pharmaceutical products that we have deeelap currently are developing. The FDA has esthbti
guidelines and safety standards that are applicalitee laboratory and preclinical evaluation alidical
investigation of therapeutic products and stringegtlations that govern the manufacture and daleese product
The process of obtaining regulatory approval faew therapeutic product usually requires a sigaift@mount of
time and substantial resources. The steps typioadjyired before a product can be produced andetedior
human use include:

< Animal pharmacology studies to obtain preliminarfpirmation on the safety and efficacy of a dr
« Laboratory and preclinical evaluatiin vitro andin vivoincluding extensive toxicology studie

The results of these laboratory and preclinicalistsimay be submitted to the FDA as part of angtigational
new drug, or IND, application. The sponsor of aI&pplication may commence human testing of thepmamd
30 days after submission of the IND, unless ndatif@the contrary by the FDA.

The clinical testing program for a new drug typigahvolves three phases:

« Phase 1 investigations are generally conductee@aithy subjects. In certain instances, subjects aviife-
threatening disease, such as cancer, may pargdip&thase 1 studies that determine the maximuenateld
dose and initial safety of the produ

« Phase 2 studies are conducted in limited numbesalgjécts with the disease or condition to be égtand
are aimed at determining the most effective dosiesghedule of administration, evaluating both gadeid
whether the product demonstrates therapeutic eftawss against the disease;

« Phase 3 studies involve large, well-controlled stigations in diseased subjects and are aimedifying
the safety and effectiveness of the di

Data from all clinical studies, as well as all ledtory and preclinical studies and evidence of pobdjuality,
typically are submitted to the FDA in a new druglagation, or NDA. Although the FDA requirements for clinici
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trials are well established and we believe thahesxe planned and conducted our clinical trialscicoadance with
the FDA's applicable regulations and guidelinessthrequirements, including requirements relatrgsting the
safety of drug candidates, may be subject to chasgeresult of recent announcements regardintygaigblems
with approved drugs. Additionally, we could be rizggqd to conduct additional trials beyond what we panned
due to the FDA's safety and/or efficacy concerndue to differing interpretations of the meaningaf clinical
data. (See Part | — Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”)

The FDA'’s Center for Drug Evaluation and ReseaotlCDER, must approve an NDA for a drug beforealym
be marketed in the United States. If we begin toketaour proposed products for commercial sald@d.S., any
manufacturing operations that may be establishe@d outside the United States will also be sukiecigorous
regulation, including compliance with current Gdddnufacturing Practices, or cGMP. We also may lixgest to
regulation under the Occupational Safety and He%dtihthe Environmental Protection Act, the ToxigbStance
Control Act, the Export Control Act and other pretsend future laws of general application. In aiddit the
handling, care and use of laboratory animals dbgstito the Guidelines for the Humane Use and Gfre
Laboratory Animals published by the National Ingtis of Health.

Regulatory obligations continue post-approval, Exetlide the reporting of adverse events when a grug
utilized in the broader patient population. Promotand marketing of drugs is also strictly regudateith penalties
imposed for violations of FDA regulations, the LanhAct (trademark statute) and other federal aad $aws,
including the federal anti-kickback statute.

We currently intend to continue to seek, directiytwmough our partners, approval to market our potsiand
product candidates in foreign countries, which rhaye regulatory processes that differ materiatyrfthose of the
FDA. We anticipate that we will rely upon pharmatieal or biotechnology companies to license ouppsed
products or independent consultants to seek aplsravanarket our proposed products in foreign coest We
cannot assure you that approvals to market anyiopmposed products can be obtained in any couApgroval tc
market a product in any one foreign country doasecessarily indicate that approval can be obthinether
countries.

Product Liability Insurance

We currently maintain product liability insurance our products and clinical trials that providesemage in th
amount of $10.0 million per incident and $10.0 miilin the aggregate.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our executive officers, imtihg their names, ages and certain biographicatrimation
can be found in Part lll-ltem 10. “Directors, Exéea Officers and Corporate Governance.” This infation is
incorporated by reference into Part | of this répor

Employees

As of March 1, 2010, we had 139 full-time employaesluding 110 engaged in research and clinical
development activities. Included in our total headt are 51 employees who hold Ph.D. or M.D. degridene of
our employees are unionized and we believe outioakhip with our employees is good.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Related To Our Business

We have generated only minimal revenue from prodsates to date; we have a history of net losses and
negative cash flow, and we may never achieve orntan profitability.

Relative to expenses incurred in our operationshawe generated only minimal revenue from prodalgtss
licensing fees and milestone payments to date anchay never generate sufficient revenues from éupnoduct
sales, licensing fees and milestone payments seidxpenses. Even if we ultimately do achieveifsogimt
revenues from product sales, licensing fees amdilesstone payments, we expect to incur significgrerating
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losses over the next few years. We have never jpp@ditable, and we may never become profitableotigh
December 31, 2009, we have incurred aggregat@ssts of approximately $172.0 million.

If our contract manufacturers are unable to manufaure significant amounts of the APl used in our pdoicts
and product candidates, our product development aodnmercialization efforts could be delayed or gtegd
and our collaborative partnerships could be damaged

We have existing supply agreements with contractufecturing organizations Avid Bioservices, Ina. Avid,
and Cook Pharmica LLC, or Cook, to produce bulk ARlese manufacturers each produce API under duBeod
Manufacturing Practices, or cGMP, for clinical udasaddition, Avid currently produces API for coramialized
products. Avid and Cook will also provide suppan the chemistry, manufacturing and controls sestifor FDA
and other regulatory filings. We rely on their #@lito successfully manufacture these batches doupto product
specifications and Cook has relatively limited exgrece manufacturing our API. In addition, as aitesf our
contractual obligations to Roche, we will be reqdito significantly scale up our commercial APIgrotion at
Cook during the next few years. If Cook is unablebtain status as a cGMP-approved manufacturicititfa or if
either Avid or Cook: (i) are unable to retain stafis cGMP-approved manufacturing facilities; (i anable to
otherwise successfully scale up our API productarr(jii) fail to manufacture the API required burgproprietary
and partnered products and product candidatesyfoother reason, our business will be adverselcaédfl. We have
not established, and may not be able to estalfisbrable arrangements with additional APl manufests and
suppliers of the ingredients necessary to manufa¢he API should the existing manufacturers anqpbers
become unavailable or in the event that our exgstimnufacturers and suppliers are unable to adelguzerform
their responsibilities. We have attempted to mteéghe impact of supply interruption through theabshment of
excess API inventory, but there can be no assusaheg this safety stock will be maintained or thatill be
sufficient to address any delays, interruptionstber problems experienced by Avid and/or Cook. dajays,
interruptions or other problems regarding the abdf Avid and/or Cook to supply API on a timelydis could:

(i) cause the delay of clinical trials or otherwissday or prevent the regulatory approval of preary or partnered
product candidates; and (ii) delay or prevent ffiecéve commercialization of proprietary or panteé products.
Such delays would likely damage our relationshithwur partners under our key collaboration agregsiand they
would have a material adverse effect on our busiaesd financial condition.

Our key partners are responsible for providing cairt proprietary materials that are essential compatts of
our partnered product candidates, and any failure $upply these materials could delay the developnaem
commercialization efforts for these partnered practicandidates and/odamage our collaborative partnership

Our partners are responsible for providing cenpaioprietary materials that are essential componasir
partnered product candidates. For example, Roctesjmnsible for producing the Herceptin and Mabaequired
for its subcutaneous product candidates and Baxtesponsible for producing the GAMMAGARD LIQUIDIfits
product candidate. If a partner, or any applicalhiel party service provider of a partner, encountéfficulties in
the manufacture, storage, delivery, fill, finishp@ackaging of either components of the partneredymst candidate
or the partnered product candidate itself, sucticdities could: (i) cause the delay of clinicabts or otherwise
delay or prevent the regulatory approval of pagdegroduct candidates; and/or (ii) delay or previeateffective
commercialization of partnered products. Such detauld have a material adverse effect on our essiand
financial condition. In January 2010, Baxter reeeiva Warning Letter from the FDA regarding obseovat made
by the agency following inspections of Baxter’'s mfatturing facility in Lessines, Belgium. The WargilLetter
identified a number of issues associated with oefithand finish processes and controls relatiog
GAMMAGARD LIQUID therapy. We understand that Baxtemworking with the FDA to address these issuak an
we do not expect these issues to impact the dewelopof the GAMMAGARD LIQUID product candidate.
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If any party to a key collaboration agreement, inling us, fails to perform material obligations umd such
agreement, or if a key collaboration agreementeésrminated for any reason, our business would sigegtly
suffer.

We have entered into key collaboration agreemeamgmuwhich we may receive significant future paytaen
the form of maintenance fees, milestone paymerdsayalties. In the event that a party fails tofpen under a ke'
collaboration agreement, or if a key collaboratgneement is terminated, the reduction in antieghaevenues
could delay or suspend our product developmentides for some of our product candidates as welbar
commercialization efforts for some or all of oupng@ucts. In addition, the termination of a key codleation
agreement by one of our partners could materiailyact our ability to enter into additional collaBtion agreemen
with new partners on favorable terms, if at allcértain circumstances, the termination of a kdkaboration
agreement would require us to revise our corpatatgegy going forward and reevaluate the apptioatand value
of our technology.

We may wish to raise funds in the next twelve masitand there can be no assurance that such fundk be
available.

During the next twelve months, we may wish to raidditional capital to continue the developmenbwf
product candidates or for other corporate purpddas.current cash position and expected revenuesgithe next
few years will not constitute the amount of capitatessary for us to continue the development opmprietary
product candidates and to fund general operatioreddition, if we engage in acquisitions of comipanproducts
technology in order to execute our business styateg may need to raise additional capital. We ekperaise
additional capital in the future through one or emfinancing vehicles that may be available to UmesE financing
vehicles currently include: (i) the public offering securities; (ii) new collaborative agreemefiig; expansions or
revisions to existing collaborative relationshifig) private financings; and/or (v) other equitydebt financings.

Considering our stage of development, the natumuotapital structure and general market conditiénwve
are required to raise additional capital in theifat the additional financing may not be availabie€favorable terms,
or at all. If additional capital is not available tavorable terms, we may be required to signifiigareduce operatir
expenses through the restructuring of our operatilirwe are successful in raising additional cap# substantial
number of additional shares may be issued and gtemes will dilute the ownership interest of ourrent investor:

If we are unable to sufficiently develop our salesarketing and distribution capabilities or entento
successful agreements with third parties to perfotihese functions, we will not be able to fully coreraialize
our products.

We may not be successful in marketing and promatimgexisting product candidates or any other prctsiwe
develop or acquire in the future. Our sales, mangeand distribution capabilities are very limitéd.order to
commercialize any products successfully, we mustivally develop substantial sales, marketing asttildution
capabilities or establish collaborations or otheamgements with third parties to perform thesgises. We do not
have extensive experience in these areas, and weobhée able to establish adequate in-house sabaketing and
distribution capabilities or engage and effectivelgnage relationships with third parties to perfamy or all of
such services. To the extent that we enter intprooaotion or other licensing arrangements, our pcbdevenues
are likely to be lower than if we directly marketaod sold our products, and any revenues we reegivdepend
upon the efforts of third parties, whose effortymat meet our expectations or be successful.

We depend upon the efforts of third parties, sicBaxter for HYLENEX, to promote and sell our cuntre
products, but there can be no assurance thatfitrésedf these third parties will meet our expeotad or result in
any significant product sales. While these thirdipa are largely responsible for the speed andesob sales and
marketing efforts, they may not dedicate the resesinecessary to maximize product opportunitiesoamability tc
cause these third parties to increase the speescapeé of their efforts may be limited. In additisales and
marketing efforts could be negatively impacted iy delay or failure to obtain additional supportiiaical trial
data for our products. In some cases, third patiners are responsible for conducting these adhditiclinical trials
and our ability to increase the efforts and resesiallocated to these trials may be limited.
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If we have problems with third parties that eithdistribute API on our behalf or prepare, fill, firsh and
package our products and product candidates fortdimition, our commercialization and developmentfefts
for our products and product candidates could bdajeed or stopped.

We rely on third parties to store and ship API anloehalf and to also prepare, fill, finish and kssge our
products and product candidates prior to theirithistion. If we are unable to locate third partieperform these
functions on terms that are acceptable to us, thgress of clinical trials could be delayed or esespended and the
commercialization of approved product candidatedctbe delayed or prevented. We currently utilizrbsidiary
of Baxter to prepare, fill, finish and package HWLEX under a development and supply agreement. Wenreits
ability to successfully manufacture HYLENEX batclasording to product specifications. Any delays or
interruptions in Baxter’s ability to manufacture HENEX batches in amounts necessary to meet pratkrofind
could have a material adverse impact on our busiaed financial condition.

Most of our current proprietary and partnered prodts and product candidates rely on the rHUPH20 enm&sy

The rHUPH20 enzyme is a key technological compoagBnhanze Technology, our ultrafast insulin pesgy
HYLENEX and other proprietary and partnered prodwustd product candidates. An adverse development fo
rHUPH20 (e.g., we are unable to obtain sufficiardrgities of rHuPH20, we are unable to obtain ointain
material proprietary rights to rHuPH20 or we diseouegative characteristics of rHuUPH20) would sarully
impact multiple areas of our business, includingent and potential partnerships as well as prégmeprograms.

If our proprietary and partnered product candidate® not receive and maintain regulatory approvatlsey will
not be commercialized, and this failure would suéstially impair our ability to generate revenues.

Approval from the FDA is necessary to manufactur@ market pharmaceutical products in the UniteteSta
Most other countries in which we may do businesagtsmilar requirements. To date, two of our pradciandidates
have received regulatory approval from the FDA.

The process for obtaining FDA and other regulaipgrovals is extensive, time-consuming and coatig,
there is no guarantee that the FDA or other reguoldiodies will approve any new drug applicatiassNDAS, that
may be filed with respect to any of our proprietanypartnered product candidates, or that the tinoinany such
approval will be appropriate for our desired pradaanch schedule and other business priorities;iwdre subject
to change. There are no proprietary or partneredymt candidates currently in the NDA approval pss; and we
and our partners may not be successful in obtaisitefp approvals for any potential products.

Our proprietary and partnered product candidates ynaot receive regulatory approvals for a varietyresons
including unsuccessful clinical trials.

Clinical testing of pharmaceutical products is rgpexpensive and uncertain process and the faludelay of
a clinical trial can occur at any stage. Evenitiahresults of preclinical studies or clinicaiakresults are promising,
we or our partners may obtain different results$ takto show the desired levels of safety andceffy, or we may
not, or our partners may not, obtain applicableil®gry approval for a variety of other reasonsnicél trials for
any of our proprietary or partnered product cangisi@ould be unsuccessful, which would delay ohiwib
regulatory approval and commercialization of theduct candidates. In the United States, FDA appreceasa be
delayed, limited or not granted for many reasamduding, among others:

» FDA review may not find a product candidate safeftective enough to merit either continued testing
final approval,

< FDA review may not find that the data from predailitesting and clinical trials justifies approvai,they
may require additional studies that would makermmercially unattractive to continue pursuit of epyal;

« the FDA may reject our trial data or disagree witin interpretations of either clinical trial dataapplicable
regulations
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« the cost of a clinical trial may be greater tharatwhie originally anticipate, and we may decidedbpursue
FDA approval for such a tria

- the FDA may not approve our manufacturing processéacilities, or the processes or facilities af Gey
partners, our contract manufacturers or our raveri@tsuppliers

» the FDA may identify problems or other deficiendie®ur existing manufacturing processes or faesgitor
the existing processes or facilities of our keytpeans, our contract manufacturers or our raw meateri
suppliers;

« the FDA may change its formal or informal approreajuirements and policies, act contrary to previous
guidance, or adopt new regulations

« the FDA may approve a product candidate for inébeetthat are narrow or under conditions that ptaee
product at a competitive disadvantage, which maijt lbur sales and marketing activities or otherwise
adversely impact the commercial potential of a poic

If the FDA does not approve a proprietary or pagdeproduct candidate in a timely fashion on conuiadly
viable terms, or if development of any product gdate is terminated due to difficulties or delaps@untered in th
regulatory approval process, it could have a matadverse impact on our business and we will becorore
dependent on the development of other proprietapadnered product candidates and/or our abilityuccessfully
acquire other products and technologies. Therédearo assurances that any proprietary or partnaetlict
candidate will receive regulatory approval in agiynmanner, or at all.

We anticipate that certain proprietary and partgr@ducts will be marketed, and perhaps manufedtun
foreign countries. The process of obtaining regquiagpprovals in foreign countries is subject ttagend failure
for many of the same reasons set forth above dsawébr reasons that vary from jurisdiction taigdiction. The
approval process varies among countries and jetisds and can involve additional testing. The ti@guired to
obtain approval may differ from that required tdaib FDA approval. Foreign regulatory agencies matyprovide
approvals on a timely basis, if at all. Approvalthg FDA does not ensure approval by regulatorfiaittes in othe
countries or jurisdictions, and approval by onesign regulatory authority does not ensure apprbyakgulatory
authorities in other foreign countries or juriséhots or by the FDA.

If we or our partners fail to comply with regulatgrrequirements, regulatory agencies may take actagainst
us or them, which could significantly harm our buséss.

Any approved products, along with the manufactupracesses, post-approval clinical data, labeling,
advertising and promotional activities for thesedarcts, are subject to continual requirements awnigw by the
FDA and other regulatory bodies. Regulatory authesrisubject a marketed product, its manufacturdrthe
manufacturing facilities to continual review andipdic inspections. We will be subject to ongoiegulatory
requirements, including required submissions aftyadnd other post-market information and repoetgistration
requirements, cGMP regulations, requirements regagitthe distribution of samples to physicians asxbrdkeeping
requirements. The cGMP regulations include requérasirelating to quality control and quality assur as well
as the corresponding maintenance of records anghuErtation. We rely on the compliance by our cantra
manufacturers with cGMP regulations and other r@guy requirements relating to the manufacturewfproducts.
We and our partners are also subject to state daggegistration requirements covering the distidiouof our
products. Regulatory agencies may change existiggirements or adopt new requirements or polithésor our
partners may be slow to adapt or may not be alkédelapt to these changes or new requirements.

Regulatory requirements applicable to pharmacduytimaucts make the substitution of suppliers and
manufacturers costly and time consuming. We havemail internal manufacturing capabilities and ame] expect
to be in the future, entirely dependent on contmaahufacturers and suppliers for the manufactumuoproducts
and for their active and other ingredients. Thejaigification of these manufacturers and suppliersugh their
failure to comply with regulatory requirements abuakgatively impact our business because the dalaysosts in
obtaining and qualifying alternate suppliers (i€swalternative suppliers are available, which wencd assure)
could delay clinical trials or otherwise inhibitroability to bring approved products to market, gthivould have a
material adverse effect on our business and fimsdigondition.
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Later discovery of previously unknown problems wotlr proprietary or partnered products, manufaaturi
processes or failure to comply with regulatory iegments, may result in any of the following:

restrictions on our products or manufacturing psses

warning letters

withdrawal of the products from the mark

voluntary or mandatory reca

fines;

suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approv

suspension or termination of any of our ongoingicél trials;

refusal to permit the import or export of our proti

refusal to approve pending applications or suppigs approved applications that we sub
product seizure; ¢

injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminpenalties

If proprietary or partnered product candidates aapproved by regulatory bodies such as the FDA batrbt
gain market acceptance, our business may suffer arelmay not be able to fund future operations.

Assuming that our proprietary or partnered proaacididates obtain the necessary regulatory approaal
number of factors may affect the market acceptantieese existing product candidates or any othedycts which
are developed or acquired in the future, includargpng others:

the price of products relative to other therapgglie same or similar treatmer

the perception by patients, physicians and otheninees of the health care community of the effectbss
and safety of these products for their prescribeatinents

our ability to fund our sales and marketing eff@tsl the ability and willingness of our partner$uind sales
and marketing efforts

the degree to which the use of these productsigated by the approved product lak

the effectiveness of our sales and marketing effand the effectiveness of the sales and marketfogs of
our partners

the introduction of generic competitors; ¢

the extent to which reimbursement for our prodacis related treatments will be available from tiuedty
payors.

If these products do not gain market acceptancenasenot be able to fund future operations, ingigdhe
development or acquisition of new product candislated/or our sales and marketing efforts for oyrayed
products, which would cause our business to suffer.

In addition, our proprietary and partnered prodiztdidates will be restricted to the labels appaddwe
applicable regulatory bodies such as the FDA, hedd restrictions may limit the marketing and prbamof the
ultimate products. If the approved labels are ietste, the sales and marketing efforts for thesmpcts may be
negatively affected.

Developing and marketing pharmaceutical products fluman use involves product liability risks, forhich we
currently have limited insurance coverage.

The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceuticadycts involves the risk of product liability alas by
consumers and other third parties. Although we taairproduct liability insurance coverage, prodiadbility
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claims can be high in the pharmaceutical industiy @ur insurance may not sufficiently cover ounattiabilities.

If product liability claims were to be made agaiust it is possible that our insurance carriers deyy, or attempt
to deny, coverage in certain instances. If a latnagainst us is successful, then the lack or inseffcy of insurance
coverage could materially and adversely affecttuginess and financial condition. Furthermore,otesi
distributors of pharmaceutical products requireimirm product liability insurance coverage beforeghase or
acceptance of products for distribution. Failursatisfy these insurance requirements could impedeability to
achieve broad distribution of our proposed prodaats the imposition of higher insurance requiremeould
impose additional costs on us. In addition, sine@ynof our partnered product candidates include the
pharmaceutical products of a third party, we ruaribk that problems with the third party pharmaioali product
will give rise to liability claims against us.

Our inability to attract, hire and retain key managnent and scientific personnel could negativelyesft our
business.

Our success depends on the performance of key raareary and scientific employees with biotechnology
experience. Given our relatively small staff sigkative to the number of programs currently undaratbpment, we
depend substantially on our ability to hire, traimtivate and retain high quality personnel, esgdcour scientists
and management team. If we are unable to retagtiegipersonnel or identify or hire additional gersel, we may
not be able to research, develop, commercializearket our product candidates as expected or onedytbasis
and we may not be able to adequately support duarehfuture alliances with strategic partners.

Furthermore, if we were to lose key managementopeel, particularly Jonathan Lim, M.D., our Presidend
Chief Executive Officer, or Gregory Frost, Ph.Dur €hief Scientific Officer, then we would likelpde some
portion of our institutional knowledge and techhikaow-how, potentially causing a substantial detagne or
more of our development programs until adequatcement personnel could be hired and trainedekample,
Dr. Frost has been with us from soon after ourptioa, and he possesses a substantial amount vfi&dge about
our development efforts. If we were to lose hivgers, we would experience delays in meeting oadpct
development schedules. In 2008, we adopted a sexeplicy applicable to all employees and a chamgentrol
policy applicable to senior executives. We haveattutpted any other policies or entered into angrodigreements
specifically designed to maotivate officers or otkerployees to remain with us.

We do not have key man life insurance policieshanlives of any of our employees, including Dr. Lamd
Dr. Frost.

Our operations might be interrupted by the occuri@mof a natural disaster or other catastrophic even

Our operations, including laboratories, offices attter research facilities, are located in a thmaiéling
campus in San Diego, California. We depend on aditifies and on our partners, contractors and gentbr the
continued operation of our business. Natural désasir other catastrophic events, interruptiorthénsupply of
natural resources, political and governmental changildfires and other fires, floods, explosioastions of animal
rights activists, earthquakes and civil unrest dalisrupt our operations or those of our partnesatractors and
vendors. Even though we believe we carry comméyaiahsonable business interruption and liabilitsurance, ar
our contractors may carry liability insurance thedtect us in certain events, we might suffer lessea result of
business interruptions that exceed the coveragihbigunder our and our contractors’ insurancécped or for
which we or our contractors do not have coveragy. Watural disaster or catastrophic event couletmsignifican
negative impact on our operations and financialltesMoreover, any such event could delay ouraedeand
development programs.

If we or our partners do not achieve projected d@mnent goals in the timeframes we publicly annownor
otherwise expect, the commercialization of our pumtis and the development of our product candidatesy be
delayed and, as a result, our stock price may dezli

We publicly articulate the estimated timing for #icomplishment of certain scientific, clinicalguéatory and
other product development goals. The accomplishmmieay goal is typically based on numerous assiomgtand
the achievement of a particular goal may be deldgedny number of reasons both within and outsideur
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control. If scientific, regulatory, strategic othet factors cause us to not meet a goal, regardfagbether that goal
has been publicly articulated or not, the comméizeition of our products and the development of pnaprietary
and partnered product candidates may be delayedidition, the consistent failure to meet publizhnounced
milestones may erode the credibility of our managieinteam with respect to future milestone estimates

Future acquisitions could disrupt our business ammérm our financial condition.

In order to augment our product pipeline or otheeagtrengthen our business, we may decide to acquir
additional businesses, products and technologigsvéAhave limited experience in evaluating and detimg
acquisitions, our ability as an organization to makich acquisitions is unproven. Acquisitions coelglire
significant capital infusions and could involve mpaisks, including, but not limited to, the follomg:

* we may have to issue convertible debt or equityistes to complete an acquisition, which wouldutg our
stockholders and could adversely affect the maykee of our common stoc

e an acquisition may negatively impact our resultsdrations because it may require us to amortizerite
down amounts related to goodwill and other intalegéssets, or incur or assume substantial delstalities,
or it may cause adverse tax consequences, subs@epreciation or deferred compensation chai

* we may encounter difficulties in assimilating antegrating the business, products, technologiesppeel
or operations of companies that we acqt

* certain acquisitions may impact our relationshitghveixisting or potential partners who are competitivith
the acquired business, products or technolo

 acquisitions may require significant capital infuss and the acquired businesses, products or tedies
may not generate sufficient value to justify acdiga costs;

< an acquisition may disrupt our ongoing businesgriiresources, increase our expenses and distract
managemen

* acquisitions may involve the entry into a geogragtibusiness market in which we have little oiprior
experience; an

 key personnel of an acquired company may decidéonebrk for us.

If any of these risks occurred, it could adversfect our business, financial condition and opegatesults.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to idigeti consummate any future acquisitions on acd#pteerms, or
at all. If we do pursue any acquisitions, it is gibke that we may not realize the anticipated hien&bm such
acquisitions or that the market will not view swdquisitions positively.

Risks Related To Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price is subject to significant volatiit

We participate in a highly dynamic industry whidten results in significant volatility in the maigrice of
common stock irrespective of company performaneeaAesult, our high and low sales prices of ounmon stock
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 $@.09 and $3.93, respectively. We expect owkgpoice
to continue to be subject to significant volatiléyd, in addition to the other risks and uncertesndescribed
elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K ahdthkr risks and uncertainties that are eitherknotvn to us at
this time or which we deem to be immaterial, anyhef following factors may lead to a significanbgtin our stock
price:

 adispute regarding our failure, or the failureong of our third party partners, to comply with thems of a
collaboration agreemer

* the termination, for any reason, of any of ouraiodiration agreement
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« the sale of common stock by any significant stotdég including, but not limited to, direct or imdct sales
by members of management or our Board of Direc

« the resignation, or other departure, of membersaiagement or our Board of Directc
« general negative conditions in the healthcare itrgu
» general negative conditions in the financial mask

« the failure, for any reason, to obtain regulatqugraval for any of our proprietary or partnereddarect
candidates

« the failure, for any reason, to secure or defendrdellectual property positior

- for those products that are approved by the FDAfdliure of the FDA to approve such products timely
manner consistent with the FI's historical approval proces

« the suspension of any clinical trial due to safatpatient tolerability issue
« the suspension of any clinical trial due to maand/orcompetitive conditions

« our failure, or the failure of our third party paets, to successfully commercialize products apguiday
applicable regulatory bodies such as the F

« our failure, or the failure of our third party paets, to generate product revenues anticipatedusstors

« problems with an API contract manufacturer or laafild finish manufacturer for any product or praduc
candidate

« the sale of additional deand/orequity securities by u:
« our failure to obtain financing on acceptable teran:

 arestructuring of our operatior

Future sales of shares of our common stock pursusémbur universal shelf registration statement may
negatively affect our stock price.

We currently have the ability to offer and sellto$100.0 million of additional equity or debt setias under
currently effective universal shelf registratioatseimnent. Sales of substantial amounts of sharesrafommon stock
or other securities under our universal shelf tegfion statement could lower the market pricewf@mmon stock
and impair our ability to raise capital through tade of equity securities. In the future, we negue additional
options, warrants or other derivative securitiesvestible into our common stock.

Trading in our stock has historically been limitedp investors may not be able to sell as much stskhey
want to at prevailing market prices.

Our stock has historically traded at a low daibding volume. If low trading volume continues, iayrbe
difficult for stockholders to sell their sharestive public market at any given time at prevailimggs.

Risks Related To Our Industry

Compliance with the extensive government regulasdie which we are subject is expensive and time
consuming and may result in the delay or canceltatiof product sales, introductions or modifications

Extensive industry regulation has had, and willtoare to have, a significant impact on our businédis
pharmaceutical companies, including ours, are stibjeextensive, complex, costly and evolving ragioh by the
federal government, principally the FDA and, t@sser extent, the U.S. Drug Enforcement Adminisinabr DEA,
and foreign and state government agencies. Theréddg@od, Drug and Cosmetic Act, the Controlled Sabces
Act and other domestic and foreign statutes andlatigns govern or influence the testing, manufasty
packaging, labeling, storing, recordkeeping, safapyproval, advertising, promotion, sale and distion of our
products. Under certain of these regulations, wkaur contract suppliers and manufacturers are

18




Table of Contents

subject to periodic inspection of our or their restjve facilities, procedures and operations anif@testing of
products by the FDA, the DEA and other authoritisich conduct periodic inspections to confirm thatand our
contract suppliers and manufacturers are in comgdiavith all applicable regulations. The FDA alsmducts pre-
approval and post-approval reviews and plant inspes to determine whether our systems, or ourracht
suppliers’ and manufacturers’ processes, are imptiance with cGMP and other FDA regulations. If vee our
contract supplier, fail these inspections, we matybe able to commercialize our product in a tinmagnner withot
incurring significant additional costs, or at all.

In addition, the FDA imposes a number of complayutatory requirements on entities that advertigk an
promote pharmaceuticals including, but not limitedstandards and regulations for direct-to-consuadgertising,
off-label promotion, industry-sponsored scientditd educational activities, and promotional agtsgiinvolving the
internet.

We are dependent on receiving FDA and other goventah approvals prior to manufacturing, marketind a
shipping our products. Consequently, there is abaayisk that the FDA or other applicable governtaleauthoritie:
will not approve our products, or will take postapval action limiting or revoking our ability tel our products,
or that the rate, timing and cost of such approwéllsadversely affect our product introduction psaor results of
operations.

We may be required to initiate or defend againgjd proceedings related to intellectual propertghis, which
may result in substantial expense, delay and/orga®n of the development and commercializationooir
products.

We primarily rely on patents to protect our intetleal property rights. The strength of this pratatthowever,
is uncertain. For example, it is not certain that:

« our patents and pending patent applications congglygtsand/ortechnology that we invented fire

« we were the first to file patent applications feese inventions

« others will not independently develop similar aeabative technologies or duplicate our technolsg
 any of our pending patent applications will resnlissued patents; ar

 any of our issued patents, or patent pending agpics that result in issued patents, will be hellid and
infringed in the event the patents are assertehstyathers

We currently own or license several U.S. patentsaso have pending patent applications applicble
rHuPh20 and other proprietary materials. Therebmano assurance that our existing patents, or amnfs issued
us as a result of our pending patent applicatiilsprovide a basis for commercially viable prodsiowill provide
us with any competitive advantages, or will noteféiaird party challenges or be the subject of frrtroceedings
limiting their scope or enforceability. Such lintitans in our patent portfolio could have a mateaidberse effect on
our business and financial condition. In additiéany of our pending patent applications do nsuitin issued
patents, or result in issued patents with narrolintited claims, this could have a material adverect on our
business and financial condition.

We may become involved in interference proceedingkse U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to deteentiire
priority of our inventions. In addition, costlyitiation could be necessary to protect our patesitipa. We also rely
on trademarks to protect the names of our prodiittsse trademarks may not be acceptable to regylag@ncies.
In addition, these trademarks may be challengeatlgrs. If we enforce our trademarks against thadies, such
enforcement proceedings may be expensive. We algon trade secrets, unpatented proprietary know-4nd
continuing technological innovation that we seeprotect with confidentiality agreements with enygdes,
consultants and others with whom we discuss ounbss. Disputes may arise concerning the ownership
intellectual property or the applicability or enfeability of these agreements, and we might natiie to resolve
these disputes in our favor.

In addition to protecting our own intellectual pesty rights, third parties may assert patent, tnzaks or
copyright infringement or other intellectual progyeclaims against us based on what they believéhaie own
intellectual property rights. If we become involiadany intellectual property litigation, we may tegjuired to pay

19




Table of Contents

substantial damages, including but not limitedéble damages, for past infringement if it is ulitely determined
that our products infringe a third party’s intetieal property rights. Even if infringement claingainst us are
without merit, defending a lawsuit takes significime, may be expensive and may divert managemetteéntion
from other business concerns. Further, we maydppst from developing, manufacturing or selling products
until we obtain a license from the owner of theveint technology or other intellectual propertyhtsg If such a
license is available at all, it may require us &y pubstantial royalties or other fees.

Patent protection for proteirbased therapeutic products and other biotechnolamgyentions is subject to a gre:
deal of uncertainty, and if patent laws or the im@etation of patent laws change, our competitor@aynbe able
to develop and commercialize products based ondiscoveries.

Patent protection for protein-based therapeutidpets is highly uncertain and involves complex legal
factual questions. In recent years, there have biggificant changes in patent law, including tbedl standards that
govern the scope of protein and biotechnology pat&tandards for patentability of full-length grattial genes,
and their corresponding proteins, are changingeRemurt decisions have made it more difficulblbdain patents,
by making it more difficult to satisfy the requirent of non-obviousness, have decreased the aviyladsi
injunctions against infringers, and have increabkedikelihood of challenging the validity of a pat through a
declaratory judgment action. Taken together, tliesgsions could make it more difficult and costly éis to obtain,
license and enforce our patents. In addition, aemé¢ years, several members of the United Statagréss have
made numerous proposals to change the patentestaihése proposals include measures that, amosgtbihgs,
would expand the ability of third parties to oppassted States patents, introduce the “first te"fdtandard to the
United States patent system, and limit damagesfanger is required to pay. If the patent staistehanged, the
scope, validity and enforceability of our patentynbe significantly decreased.

There also have been, and continue to be, polegudsions concerning the scope of patent proteati@rded
to biotechnology inventions. Social and politicpposition to biotechnology patents may lead tooaer patent
protection within the biotechnology industry. Séeiad political opposition to patents on genes jideins may
lead to narrower patent protection, or narroweintiaterpretation, for genes, their correspondingtgins and
inventions related to their use, formulation andhafacture. Patent protection relating to biotechgglproducts is
also subject to a great deal of uncertainty outdiddJnited States, and patent laws are evolviusdergoing
revision in many countries. Changes in, or difféiaterpretations of, patent laws worldwide mayutes our
inability to obtain or enforce patents, and magpwlbthers to use our discoveries to develop andwerialize
competitive products, which would impair our busise

If third party reimbursement and customer contracise not available, our products may not be accepie the
market.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on the extent to which reinmsement
for our products and related treatments will belakée from government health administration auities, private
health insurers, managed care organizations arm b#althcare providers.

Third-party payors are increasingly attemptinginatl both the coverage and the level of reimbursanoé new
drug products to contain costs. Consequently, figmit uncertainty exists as to the reimbursemtaitis of newly
approved healthcare products. Third party payong moa establish adequate levels of reimbursemerthé
products that we commercialize, which could lirhi¢it market acceptance and result in a materiadmsaveffect on
our financial condition.

Customer contracts, such as with group purchagiganizations and hospital formularies, will oftest nffer
contract or formulary status without either the éstvprice or substantial proven clinical differatitn. If our
products are compared to animal-derived hyalur@@ddy these entities, it is possible that neii¢nese
conditions will be met, which could limit market@ptance and result in a material adverse effecuofinancial
condition.

The rising cost of healthcare and related pharmadieal product pricing has led to cost containmentgssures
that could cause us to sell our products at loweicps, resulting in less revenue to us.

Any of the proprietary or partnered products theaténbeen, or in the future are, approved by the Ri2¥ be
purchased or reimbursed by state and federal goarhauthorities, private health insurers and other
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organizations, such as health maintenance orgamsaind managed care organizations. Such thitgt payors
increasingly challenge pharmaceutical product pgciThe trend toward managed healthcare in theed8tates,
the growth of such organizations, and various lagliee proposals and enactments to reform heakhaad
government insurance programs, including the Medi€aescription Drug Modernization Act of 2003, kcbu
significantly influence the manner in which pharmatical products are prescribed and purchasedtiresin lower
prices and/or a reduction in demand. Such costgmment measures and healthcare reforms could selyeaffect
our ability to sell our products. Furthermore, indual states have become increasingly aggressipassing
legislation and implementing regulations desigreeddantrol pharmaceutical product pricing, includprice or
patient reimbursement constraints, discounts,icisins on certain product access, importation faiher countries
and bulk purchasing. Legally mandated price cosatonl payment amounts by third party payors or atbgrictions
could negatively and materially impact our revenaied financial condition. We anticipate that welwilcounter
similar regulatory and legislative issues in mdkieo countries outside the United States.

We face intense competition and rapid technologicabnge that could result in the development of guwts by
others that are superior to our proprietary and gaered products under development.

Our proprietary and partnered products have nunsecompetitors in the United States and abroad diirogy
among others, major pharmaceutical and speciabim@dchnology firms, universities and other reskanstitutions
that have developed competing products. For exgrfgaiél YLENEX, such competitors include, but ard hmited
to, Sigma-Aldrich Corporation, ISTA Pharmaceuticéhe. and Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. amoherst For
our Insulin-PH20 and Analog-PH20 product candidadash competitors may include Biodel Inc. and Maimeh
Corporation. These competitors may develop techyiesoand products that are more effective, safdess costly
than our current or future proprietary and partdgneduct candidates or that could render our telcigies and
product candidates obsolete or noncompetitive. Mdriiese competitors have substantially more messuand
product development, manufacturing and marketimedgnce and capabilities than we do. In additibany of our
competitors have significantly greater experiet@ntwe do in undertaking preclinical testing andicél trials of
pharmaceutical product candidates and obtaining BBd\other regulatory approvals of products anchffies for
use in healthcare.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our administrative offices and research faciliaes currently located in San Diego, California. Ma&se an
aggregate of approximately 58,000 square feetfafeofnd research space for a monthly rent expehse
approximately $128,000, net of costs and propentgs associated with the operation and maintenafribe
subleased facilities. We believe the current spmeglequate for our immediate needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

From time to time, we may be involved in disputasluding litigation, relating to claims arising toof
operations in the normal course of our businesy. &rhese claims could subject us to costly legglenses and,
while we generally believe that we have adequagerance to cover many different types of liabititieur insuranc
carriers may deny coverage or our policy limits rbayinadequate to fully satisfy any damage awardetlements
If this were to happen, the payment of any suchrdsveould have a material adverse effect on ousaaiated
results of operations and financial position. Agtatially, any such claims, whether or not successfulld damage
our reputation and business. We currently are matrty to any legal proceedings, the adverse outomimvhich, in
management’s opinion, individually or in the aggreg would have a material adverse effect on onsaiaated
results of operations or financial position.

Item 4. Removed and Reservi
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities
Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global kgrunder the symbol “HALO.” The following table
sets forth the high and low sales prices per stfoeir common stock during each quarter of the et recent

fiscal years:
2009 2008
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $6.41 $3.9¢ $7.28  $4.1¢
Second Quarte $8.0¢ $5.07 $6.62 $4.7%
Third Quartel $7.91 $6.11 $8.2¢ $5.3¢
Fourth Quarte $7.8¢ $5.22 $7.2¢  $2.6C

On March 1, 2010, the closing sales price of ounmmmn stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market was $6.63 per
share. As of March 1, 2010, we had approximatédp@ stockholders of record. We have not paid amigldhds on
our common stock since our inception and do noeekf pay dividends on our common stock in thegeeable
future.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table summarizes our compensationplander which our equity securities are authorfped
issuance as of December 31, 2009:

Number of
Shares
Number of Remaining
Shares to be Available for
Issued upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price Under Equity
Outstanding of Outstanding Compensation
Options, Options, Plans (Excluding
Warrants and Warrants and Shares Reflecte
Rights Rights in Column (a))
Plan Category (@) (b) ()
Equity compensation plans approved by stockhold$ 7,804,261 $ 3.7 4,026,75.
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldre — — —
Total 7,804,261 $ 3.7 $ —

(1) Represents stock options under the 2008 Stock P08 Outside Directors’ Stock Plan, 2006 StockiP2905
Outside Directors’ Stock Plan, 2004 Stock Plan #wed2001 Stock Plan. Options under the 2001 Stéak P
were assumed by Halozyme as part of the March at#¥ger between DeliaTroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(“DeliaTroph”) and Global Yacht Services, Inc. TA@01 Stock Plan was approved by the shareholders of
DeliaTroph prior to the merger and the former shaigers of DeliaTroph held approximately 90% of wioéing
stock of Halozyme immediately following the mergidn additional options will be granted under th@20
Stock Plan
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary ig @hour previous or future filings with the SEfet
following information relating to the price perfoance of our common stock shall not be deemed “filed” with
the SEC or to be “soliciting material” under the Geities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or fuh&nge Act,
and it shall not be deemed to be incorporated Iigremce into any of our filings under the Secusitfect of 1933, as
amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the exeespecifically incorporate it by reference intekdiling.

The graph below compares Halozyme Therapeuticsslogmulative five-year total shareholder retum o
common stock with the cumulative total returnshef NASDAQ Composite index and the NASDAQ Biotecloggyl
index. The graph tracks the performance of a $&08stment in our common stock and in each of tHexas (with
the reinvestment of all dividends) from DecemberZ104 to December 31, 2009. The historical staatep
performance included in this graph is not necelgsaudicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., The NASDAQ Cosifglndex
And The NASDAQ Biotechnology Index
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* $100 invested on 12/31/04 in stock or index, intigdeinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December .

12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. $100.0C |$ 82.7¢ [$365.97 [$323.1¢ |$254.5! | $266.8:
NASDAQ Composite $100.0C [$101.37 [$114.07 [$123.7. |$ 73.171 |$105.6!
NASDAQ Biotechnology $100.0C |$117.5¢ [$117.37 |$121.37 |$113.4. |$124.5¢

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, holoferarious outstanding warrants exercised thgints to
purchase 492,857 common shares for gross procéagpmximately $1.1 million. The shares and ungded
warrants were purchased for investment in a prip&teement exempt from the registration requiresehthe
Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected consolidated financial data set foetbw as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and fofighal
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007¢ewed from our audited consolidated financial extatnts
included elsewhere in this report. This informatitould be read in conjunction with those conseédiddinancial
statements, the notes thereto, and with “ManageémBigcussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiordd&results
of Operations.” The selected consolidated finart#h set forth below as of December 31, 2007, 2062005,
and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 20662805, are derived from our audited consolidateahtcial
statements that are contained in reports previdiisety with the SEC, not included herein.

Summary Financial Information

Years Ended December 31,

Statement of Operations Data: 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Total revenue $13,671,30 $ 8,764,13' $ 3,799,520 $§ 981,74t $ 127,20¢
Net loss (58,360,52) (48,654,19) (23,896,18) (14,751,98) (13,275,37)
Net loss per share, basic ¢

diluted $ (0.67) $ (0.61) $ (0.32) $ 0.29) $ (0.2¢)
Shares used in computing net loss

share, basic and dilut¢ 86,700,09 79,843,70 74,317,93 62,610,26 50,317,02

As of December 31

Balance Sheet Date 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Cash and cash equivalel $67,464,50 $63,715,90 $ 97,679,08 $44,189,40 $19,132,19
Working capital 60,044,79 59,794,37 92,312,93 41,343,01' 17,802,80
Total asset 77,149,75 76,562,71  103,460,37 46,091,320 20,510,25
Deferred revenue 60,482,19 49,448,45 39,269,49 19,981,53 254,13t
Total liabilities 70,246,37 61,182,71 45,692,45  23,010,08 2,303,36!
Stockholder' equity 6,903,38' 15,379,99 57,767,92.  23,081,23 18,206,88

Item 7. Managemen’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatiol

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forward-looking statemenas #ne
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual resoiey differ substantially from those referred todimrdue to a
number of factors, including but not limited tokssdescribed in the Part I, Iltem 1A “Risks Factoesid elsewhere
in this Annual Report.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated tdetielopment and commercialization of productseting
the extracellular matrix for the endocrinology, ology, dermatology and drug delivery markets. Ouasteng
products and our products under development ardbas intellectual property covering the familyhoiman
enzymes known as hyaluronidases. Hyaluronidasesnasanes (proteins) that break down hyaluronahi/Ayr
which is a naturally occurring space-filling, gidd substance that is a major component of botmabtissues
throughout the body, such as skin and cartilage:,adomormal tissues such as tumors. Our primaryntdohy is
based on our proprietary recombinant human PH20neezor rHUPH20, a human synthetic version of
hyaluronidase. The PH20 enzyme is a naturally eowyenzyme that temporarily degrades HA, therelmylitating
the penetration and diffusion of other drugs andifl that are injected under the skin or in the cteuur
proprietary rHUPH20 technology is applicable to tiplé therapeutic areas and may be used to botanekpxisting
markets and create new ones for the developmemiradwn proprietary products. The rHUPH20 technyplogy
also be applied to existing and developmental petsdof third parties through key partnerships.

24




Table of Contents

Our operations to date have involved organizing staffing our operating subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc.,
acquiring, developing and securing our technolagy andertaking product development for our exispngducts
and a limited number of product candidates. Weinagtto increase our focus on our proprietary pobgipeline
and have expanded investments in our proprietarglymt candidates. We currently have multiple pretarly
programs in various stages of research and developrim addition, we have entered into a key pastrip with F.
Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche, Ioc.Roche, to apply Enhan#¢Technology to Roche’s
biological therapeutic compounds for up to 13 tesgé/e have also entered into two key partnershigfsBaxter
Healthcare Corporation, or Baxter, to apply Enhargehnology to Baxter’s biological therapeutic caupd,
GAMMAGARD LIQUID ™ and to develop and supply active pharmaceuticakitignt, or API, for HYLENEX, a
registered trademark of Baxter International, [fizere are two marketed products that utilize ochnelogy:
HYLENEX, a product used as an adjuvant to increaselispersion and absorption of other injectedsiand
fluids, and Cumulas®, a product used fan vitro fertilization, or IVF. Currently, we receive onlyrited revenue
from the sales of HYLENEX and from the sales of A®the third party that produces Cumulase, intamidto othe
revenues from our partnerships with Baxter and Boch

We have product candidates in the research, prealiand clinical stages, but future revenues ftbensales of
these product candidates will depend on our aliitgevelop, manufacture, obtain regulatory appsofa and
successfully commercialize product candidates.ay e years, if ever, before we are able to obtgulatory
approvals for these product candidates. We haveriad net operating losses each year since inceptioh an
accumulated deficit of approximately $172.0 millias of December 31, 2009.

We currently have an effective universal shelf sagtion statement which allows us to offer andigelto
$100.0 million of equity or debt securities and mvay utilize this universal shelf in the future tise capital to fund
the continued development of our product candidatescommercialization of our products or for etheneral
corporate purposes.

Collaborative Partnerships
Roche Partnership

In December 2006, Halozyme and Roche entered mirnhanze Technology partnership, or the Roche
Partnership. Under the terms of the Roche PartiprRoche obtained a worldwide, exclusive licerssdavelop an
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 withto thirteen Roche target compounds resulting fiioe
collaboration. Roche initially had the exclusivghti to apply rHUPH20 to only three pre-defined Roblologic
targets with the option to exclusively develop andhmercialize rHUPH20 with an additional ten tasg&oche
elected to add a fourth exclusive target to theedhariginal exclusive targets in December 2008afifth exclusive
target in June 2009.

Compounds directed at three of the Roche excluaigets are currently in clinical trials. Two conupads are
in Phase 1 clinical trials, and the third compoisith a Phase 3 clinical trial. In October 2009, ammounced the
commencement of the first Phase 3 clinical trialdf@ompound directed at an exclusive target. Phisse 3 clinical
trial is for a subcutaneously delivered versiofiRothe’s anticancer biologic, Herceptin (trastuzuma@he study
will investigate the pharmacokinetics, efficacy aadety of subcutaneous Herceptin in patients WHR2-positive
breast cancer as part of adjuvant treatment. Hercispapproved to treat HER2-positive breast caaoe currently
is given intravenously. Breast cancer is the mosiraon cancer among women worldwide. Each year tiaire ont
million new cases of breast cancer are diagnosetilwige, and nearly 400,000 people will die of tlisease
annually. In HER2-positive breast cancer, increageghtities of the HER2 protein are present orsthéace of the
tumor cells. This is known as ‘HER2 positivity’ aaffects approximately 20-25% of women with brezstcer.

In September 2009, Roche began a Phase 1 clinidiar a subcutaneous formulation of MabTh&ra
(rituximab). The study will investigate the pharrmkinetics and tolerability of subcutaneous MabThernatients
with follicular lymphoma as part of maintenanceatraent. Intravenously administered MabThera is @t for
the treatment of non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma (NHL), péyof cancer that affects lymphocytes, or whitetloells.
An estimated 66,000 new cases of NHL were diagnos#te U.S. in 2009 with approximately 125,000 reages
reported worldwide.
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Additional information about the Phase 3 subcutasdderceptin and Phase 1 subcutaneous MabTheieatlin
trials can be found at www.clinicaltrials.gov andw.roche-trials.com.

Roche retains the option to exclusively develop esrimercialize rHuUPH20 with an additional eighgtts
through the payment of annual license maintenaees. Pending the successful completion of varibogal,
regulatory and sales events, Roche will be obl@yadenake milestone payments to us as well as opayments
on the sales of products that result from the gastmp.

Baxter Gammagard Partnership

GAMMAGARD LIQUID is a current Baxter product that indicated for the treatment of primary
immunodeficiency disorders associated with defectie immune system. In September 2007, Halozymde a
Baxter entered into an Enhanze Technology partigerehthe Gammagard Partnership. Under the tefrtisi®
partnership, Baxter obtained a worldwide, exclusisense to develop and commercialize product coatimns of
rHUPH20 with GAMMAGARD LIQUID. Pending the successEompletion of various regulatory and sales
milestones, Baxter will be obligated to make mid@st payments to us as well as royalty paymentb@sdles of
products that result from the partnership. Baxdeesponsible for all development, manufacturitigjaal,
regulatory, sales and marketing costs under thenGagard Partnership, while we will be responsibletie supply
of the rHUPH20 enzyme. In addition, Baxter hasatenproduct development and commercialization @bians in
major markets identified in the Gammagard Licehsdanuary of 2009, we announced the commencenfi@nt o
Phase 3 clinical trial for GAMMAGARD LIQUID with rdPH20, and in July 2009, we announced the complet
enrollment for this study.

HYLENEX Partnership

HYLENEX is a formulation of rHUPH20 that, when injed under the skin, facilitates the dispersion and
absorption of other injected drugs or fluids. Irbfeeary 2007, Halozyme and Baxter amended certastiey
agreements relating to HYLENEX and entered intew agreement for kits and formulations with rHuPH@Othe
HYLENEX Partnership. Pending the successful conmuietf a series of regulatory and sales eventsteBaxill be
obligated to make milestone payments to us asasalbyalty payments on the sales of products #zatitrfrom the
partnership. Baxter is responsible for developmeatnufacturing, clinical, regulatory, sales andketing costs of
the products covered by the HYLENEX Partnership.Wilecontinue to supply Baxter with API for HYLENE
and Baxter will prepare, fill, finish and packag® HENEX and hold it for subsequent distribution.@etober 2009,
Baxter announced the commercial launch of HYLENEXombinant (hyaluronidase human injection) forinse
pediatric rehydration at the 2009 American Colleg&mergency Physicians (ACEP) scientific asseniBlyston).
In addition, under the HYLENEX Partnership, Baxtes a worldwide, exclusive license to develop and
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 vidtixter hydration fluids and generic small molealtegs,
with the exception of combinations with (i) bisppbsnates, (ii) cytostatic and cytotoxic chemothetsiz agents
and (i) proprietary small molecule drugs, thehtigto which have been retained by Halozyme.

Revenues

Revenues from product sales depend on our alilibevelop, manufacture, obtain regulatory approfalsnd
successfully commercialize our products and prodantlidates.

Revenues from license and collaboration agreenseateecognized based on the performance requirsroént
the underlying agreements. Revenue is deferrefibém received before they are earned. Nonrefundgdfitent
payments and license fees, where we have an ongoiatyement or performance obligation, are recdrds
deferred revenue and recognized as revenue oveptfiect or development period. Milestone paymargs
generally recognized as revenue upon the achievieohéme milestones as specified in the underlydggeement,
assuming we meet certain criteria. Royalty reverfiiges the sale of licensed products are recognigexh the sale
of such products.

Elements of our collaborative partnerships inclnderefundable license fees, reimbursements of relsead
development services, various clinical, regulatargales milestones and future product-based @ityogayments,
as applicable. Due to our ongoing involvement dail@ns under these partnerships, we recorded the
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nonrefundable license fees and annual license arante fees as deferred revenues. Such revenuasirage
recognized over the terms of the underlying agredsnhat define the terms of the partnerships.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Sales.Cost of sales consists primarily of raw materitiigd-party manufacturing costs, fill and finish
costs, and freight costs associated with the sdl€smulase, API for Cumulase and the API for HYLEN

Research and Developmen©ur research and development expenses includeesahnd benefits, research-
related manufacturing services, clinical trialspiract research services, supplies and materadsities and other
overhead costs and other outside expenses. Weechlrgsearch and development expenses to opesatothey
are incurred. Our research and development aetivitie primarily focused on the development ofvawious
product candidates.

Since our inception in 1998 through December 3092@e have incurred research and development sgpen
of $149.7 million. From January 1, 2007 through &weber 31, 2009, approximately 20% and 15% of csgarch
and development expenses were associated withetledappment of our ultrafast insulin and PEGPH2Gpod
candidates, respectively. Due to the uncertainghbitaining the U.S. Food and Drug AdministrationFBA, and
other regulatory approvals, our reliance on thadips and competitive pressures, we are unaldstimate with
any certainty the additional costs we will incuttie continued development of our proprietary pobaandidates
for commercialization. However, we expect our reseand development expenses to increase as admgiro
candidates advance into later stages of clinicatld@ment.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of susseand total costs vary widely. We anticipate tatwill
make ongoing determinations as to which researdidaxelopment projects to pursue and how much fgntdi
direct to each project on an ongoing basis in nespado existing resource levels, the scientific elirdcal progress
of each product candidate, and other market andatay developments. We plan on focusing our resesion
those proprietary and partnered product candidht#gepresent the most valuable economic andesirat
opportunities.

Product candidate completion dates and costs vgmyfisantly for each product candidate and ardidift to
estimate. The lengthy process of seeking regulappyovals and the subsequent compliance with caigé
regulations require the expenditure of substantisburces. Any failure by us to obtain, or any géteobtaining,
regulatory approvals could cause our research emelgdpment expenditures to increase and, in tave fa material
adverse effect on our results of operations. Waatbe certain when, or if, our product candidatékreceive
regulatory approval or whether any net cash inflamwn our other product candidates, or developmeuijepts, will
commence.

Selling, General and AdministrativeSelling, general and administrative, or SG&A, expes consist primarily
of compensation and other expenses related toaporate operations and administrative employeznunting
and legal fees, other professional services exgensarketing expenses, as well as other expensesiated with
operating as a publicly traded company.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial positind results of operations are based on our tdasal
financial statements, which have been prepareddardance with U.S. generally accepted accountimgiples, or
U.S. GAAP. The preparation of our consolidatedricial statements requires us to make estimatefudgchents
that affect the reported amounts of assets, lta@slirevenues and expenses and related disclobooatingent
assets and liabilities. We review our estimateamongoing basis. We base our estimates on hiat@xperience
and on various other assumptions that we beliebe teeasonable under the circumstances, the refultsich form
the basis for making judgments about the carryelges of assets and liabilities. Actual results miffer from
these estimates under different assumptions orittomsl We believe the following accounting poligi® be critical
to the judgments and estimates used in the préparmftour consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue Recognitio

We generate revenues from product sales and codiib® agreements. Payments received under colitiber
agreements may include nonrefundable fees at tpiion of the agreements, license fees, milegtageents for
specific achievements designated in the collabgragreements, reimbursements of research andogaveht
services and/or royalties on sales of productdtiegifrom collaborative arrangements.

We recognize revenue in accordance with the augiiwmé guidance on revenue recognition. Revenue is
recognized when all of the following criteria aretm(1) persuasive evidence of an arrangementsexX&t delivery
has occurred or services have been rendered;d3elker’s price to the buyer is fixed and deteabir; and
(4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Product Sales

Revenues from the sales of Cumulase and API forlasa are recognized when the transfer of ownership
occurs, which is upon shipment to our distribute are obligated to accept returns for productdioats not meet
product specifications. Historically, we have nathany product returns as a result of not meetindyzt
specifications.

Under the terms of the HYLENEX Partnership, we $y@axter the API for HYLENEX at our fully burdened
cost plus a margin. Baxter fills and finishes HYLEX and holds it for subsequent distribution, atethiime we
ensure it meets product specifications and rel¢aseavailable for sale. Because of our continngdlvement in
the development and production process of HYLENtX,earnings process is not considered to be comple
Accordingly, we defer the revenue and related pcbdasts on the API for HYLENEX until the produstfilled,
finished, packaged and released. Baxter may otlyrrehe API for HYLENEX to us if it does not comfo to
certain specified criteria set forth in the HYLENB&rtnership or upon termination of such agreenwsthave
historically demonstrated that the API shipped &xt®r has consistently met the specified critéhiarefore, no
allowance for product returns has been establidneatidition, we receive product-based paymentsupe sale of
HYLENEX by Baxter, in accordance with the termgtof HYLENEX Partnership. Product sales revenues are
recognized as we earn such revenues based on Batigmments of HYLENEX to its distributors whencbu
amounts can be reasonably estimated. Baxter hpaigr$10.0 million of product-based payments. Thepaid
product-based payments were initially deferred adbeing recognized as product sales revenue &aimpany
earns such revenue from the sales of HYLENEX byt&ax

Revenues under Collaborative Agreements

Revenues from collaborative and licensing agreesnar recognized based on the performance requiterol
the underlying agreements. Revenue is deferrefibém received before they are earned. Nonrefundgdftent
payments and license fees, in which we have aninggovolvement or performance obligation, are reeadl as
deferred revenue and recognized as revenue oveptfiect or development period. We recognize nules
payments upon the achievement of specified milestdfin (1) the milestone is substantive in nature the
achievement of the milestone was not reasonablyredst the inception of the agreement, (2) the &e
nonrefundable and (3) our performance obligatidtes she milestone achievement will continue tdflmeded by ou
collaborator at a level comparable to the leveblethe milestone achievement. Any milestone paysnecteived
prior to satisfying these revenue recognition catare recorded as deferred revenue. Reimburseroérgsearch
and development services are recognized as revknirg the period in which the services are pertminmRoyaltie:
to be received based on sales of licensed protyatsir collaborators incorporating our productsraegnized as
earned in accordance with the terms of the undeglggreements.

Share-Based Payments

We use the fair value method to account for stased payments in accordance with the authoritgtindance
for stock compensation. The fair value of eachasptiward is estimated on the date of grant usiBek-Scholes-
Merton option pricing model, or Black-Scholes modieat uses assumptions regarding a number of engpid
subjective variables. These variables include goaitnot limited to, our expected stock price véitgtiactual and
projected employee stock option exercise behaviisis,free interest rate and expected dividends.

28




Table of Contents

Expected volatilities are based on the historicddtility of our common stock and our peer groupeExpected
term of options granted is based on analyses tdrigal employee termination rates and option esesc The risk-
free interest rates are based on the U.S. Tregseld/in effect at the time of the grant. Since deenot expect to p:
dividends on our common stock in the foreseealiledywe estimated the dividend yield to be 0%fditures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if ag@gy, in subsequent periods if actual forfeituliéfer from those
estimates. We estimate pre-vesting forfeituresdaseour historical experience.

If factors change and we employ different assunmgtior determination of fair value in future persothe
sharebased compensation expense that we record may siffi@ficantly from what we have recorded in therent
period. There is a high degree of subjectivity ied when using option pricing models to estimaare-based
compensation. Certain share-based payments, swheyee stock options, may expire worthless bemtise
result in zero intrinsic value as compared to HieVfalues originally estimated on the grant daie meported in our
consolidated financial statements. Alternativeplues may be realized from these instruments tleagignificantly
in excess of the fair values originally estimatadtoe grant date and reported in our consolidatexh€ial
statements. There is currently no market-based amsm or other practical application to verify tieéiability and
accuracy of the estimates stemming from these tialuanodels, nor is there a means to compare ajudtatie
estimates to actual values. Although the fair valiemployee share-based awards is determinector@ance with
authoritative guidance on stock compensation uaimgption-pricing model, that value may not be ¢atiive of the
fair value observed in a willing buyer/willing sedlmarket transaction.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include saaddsenefits, facilities and other overhead expense
clinical trials, research-related manufacturing/eers, contract services and other outside expeResearch and
development expenses are charged to operatiohswate incurred. Advance payments, including nfomaable
amounts, for goods or services that will be useendered for future research and developmentitesare
deferred and capitalized. Such amounts will begaized as an expense as the related goods arereelior the
related services are performed or such time treaCibmpany does not expect the goods to be deliverservices t
be rendered.

Milestone payments that we make in connection witlicensed technology or product candidates are esqul
as incurred when there is uncertainty in receivirigre economic benefits from the licensed techgylor product
candidates. We consider the future economic berfedim the licensed technology or product candsltdebe
uncertain until such licensed technology or prodactdidates are approved for marketing by reguldiodies such
as the FDA or when other significant risk factors abated. Management has viewed future economigfite for
all of our licensed technology or product candiddtebe uncertain and has expensed these amouiscfaunting
purposes.

Payments in connection with our clinical trials afeen made under contracts with multiple contrasearch
organizations that conduct and manage clinicdktoa our behalf. The financial terms of these agrents are
subject to negotiation and vary from contract totcact and may result in uneven payment flows. Galye these
agreements set forth the scope of work to be paddrat a fixed fee, unit price or on a time-andariat basis.
Payments under these contracts depend on facttisasithe successful enroliment or treatment eép@tor the
completion of other clinical trial milestones. Exges related to clinical trials are accrued basedun estimates
and/orrepresentations from service providers regardingkyerformed, including actual level of patient@iment,
completion of patient studies and clinical triatsgress. Other incidental costs related to pagentliment or
treatment are accrued when reasonably certainel€bntracted amounts are modified (for instanee, @esult of
changes in the clinical trial protocol or scopewoirk to be performed), we modify our accruals adewgly on a
prospective basis. Revisions in scope of contnactharged to expense in the period in which thesfdnat give rise
to the revision become reasonably certain. Becafigee uncertainty of possible future changes &stope of wor
in clinical trials contracts, we are unable to difgran estimate of the reasonably likely effectaofy such changes
on our consolidated results of operations or firmmosition. Historically, we have had no mateghinges in our
clinical trial expense accruals that would have &adaterial impact on our consolidated resultspafrations or
financial position.
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Inventory

Inventory consists of raw materials used in productwork in process and finished goods inventanhand
related to our HYLENEX and Cumulase products. Inegnis valued at lower of cost or market (net icesddle
value) using the first-in, first-out method. Invent is reviewed periodically for slow-moving or albste status. To
the extent that its net realizable value is lowrantcost, an impairment would be recorded.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsiverist of all of our accounting policies. In nyatases, the
accounting treatment of a particular transactiospiscifically dictated by U.S. GAAP. There are aseas in which
our management’s judgment in selecting any avalalibrnative would not produce a materially diéferresult.
Please see our audited consolidated financialrstates and notes thereto included in Part 1| — 182af this report,
which contain accounting policies and other disates required by U.S. GAAP.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2009 and3200

Revenues Under Collaborative Agreements Revenues under collaborative agreements wen@xpmtely
$12.7 million for the year ended December 31, 28@8@pared to $8.1 million for the year ended Decearlie
2008, which represents an increase of $4.6 mitiof7%. Revenues under collaborative agreementsapity
consisted of the amortization of license fees aildstone payments received from Roche and Baxter of
approximately $10.1 million and $3.4 million in ZD@nd 2008, respectively. Revenues under collaiberat
agreements also included reimbursements for rdseaat development services from Roche of $1.4 aniléind
$1.7 million and Baxter of $1.2 million and $3.0llin in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Such reimbuorents are
for research and development services rendered by the request of Roche and Baxter and the anodduture
revenues related to reimbursable research andajeweht services is uncertain. We expect the nonkneisement
revenues under our collaborative agreements tamanto increase in future periods provided thaiest various
clinical and regulatory milestones set forth infsagreements.

Product Sales— Product sales were $971,000 for the year endedrbe®e31, 2009 compared to $712,00(
the year ended December 31, 2008. The increas2s8f, @00, or 36%, was primarily due to the increaseasles of
HYLENEX and Cumulase. Based upon Baxter’s launcH8EENEX in the fourth quarter of 2009 and potehtia
supply shortages for similar products, we expeatipct sales to increase in future periods duedeased
HYLENEX sales.

Cost of Sales— Cost of sales were $312,000 for the year endszkmBber 31, 2009 compared to $332,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2008. The decrea9@fOp, or 6%, was mainly due to the decreaseditdist of
Cumulase sales in 2009. We expect cost of saleetease as product sales also increase.

Research and Development- Research and development expenses were $56i@fdr the year ended
December 31, 2009 compared to $44.2 million forythar ended December 31, 2008. The increase of $iiflion,
or 28%, was primarily due to the increases in #&@#s supporting our ultrafast insulin program @036 million and
PEGPH20 program of $2.9 million. We expect researahdevelopment costs to increase in future pgr@sdve
increase our research efforts, expand our clinicals and continue to develop and manufacturepooduct
candidates.

Selling, General and Administrative— SG&A expenses were $15.2 million for the yeademhDecember 31,
2009 compared to $14.6 million for the year endeddnber 31, 2008. The increase of approximatel® $8D, or
4%, was primarily due to the increase in compeasatosts of $1.0 million and legal expenses reltdguhtent
applications of $845,000. The increase was payrtadfset by a decrease in other legal expensed @f illion.

Share-Based Compensation— Total compensation cost for our share-based paygwas $4.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $3.omftir the year ended December 31, 2008. Researt
development expenses included share-based comipensbapproximately $2.4 million and $1.5 milliam 2009
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and 2008, respectively. SG&A expenses includedeshased compensation of approximately $2.1 mikind

$2.2 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Adefcember 31, 2009, $7.1 million of total unrecogdiz
compensation costs related to non-vested stockioptnd restricted stock awards is expected tedmgnized over
a weighted average period of 2.7 years.

Interest Income — Interest income was $98,000 for the year endecebber 31, 2009 compared to
$1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 200f decrease in interest income was primarily duewer
interest rates in 2009 as compared to the samedpier2008.

Net Loss — Net loss for the year ended December 31, 20@9$58.4 million, or $0.67 per common share,
compared to $48.7 million, or $0.61 per common sliar the year ended December 31, 2008. The inelieaset
loss was primarily due to an increase in operatixgenses, partially offset by increases in revenues

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2008 and7200

Revenues Under Collaborative Agreements Revenues under collaborative agreements wen@xpmtely
$8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 200&pmared to $3.2 million for the year ended Decen3igi2007,
which represents an increase of $4.9 million or%45BRevenues under collaborative agreements priyneoitsisted
of the amortization of license fees and milestoagnpents received from Baxter and Roche of apprateina
$3.4 million and $1.9 million in 2008 and 2007,pestively. Revenues under collaborative agreensdatsinclude:
reimbursements for research and development serfriae Baxter of $3.0 million and $543,000 and Rooh
$1.7 million and $749,000 in 2008 and 2007, respelst

Product Sales— Product sales were $712,000 for the year endedrbtsme31, 2008 compared to $640,00(
the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase2od@0, or 11%, was primarily due to the increassaies of
HYLENEX and the API for HYLENEX.

Cost of Sales— Cost of sales were $332,000 for the year endszbMber 31, 2008 compared to $240,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase2od@0, or 38%, was due to the increase in salésoAPI for
HYLENEX and an increase in the cost of Cumulasessad 2008.

Research and Development- Research and development expenses were $44i@nfdr the year ended
December 31, 2008 compared to $20.6 million forytear ended December 31, 2007. The increase o6 $aiion,
or 115%, was primarily due to the increase in aurtsed research and development costs of $10.6miltelated to
our various preclinical programs and the manufaaguscale-up of our rHUPH20 enzyme, and increased
compensation costs of $6.6 million, of which $8T®,0elated to increased share-based compensationarily due
to the increase in our research and developmenlcbeat. At December 31, 2008, our headcount faraeh and
development functions totaled 96 employees, contpaith 56 employees at December 31, 2007. Additlgpaur
clinical trial expenses increased by $3.0 millimsearch supplies expenses increased by $1.3mraliid facilities
expenses increased by $1.2 million resulting freasing larger facilities effective July 2007 to@menodate the
increase in headcount in 2008 as compared to 2007.

Selling, General and Administrative— SG&A expenses were $14.6 million for the yeadeshDecember 31,
2008 compared to $11.2 million for the year endedddnber 31, 2007. The increase of approximately S@lion,
or 30%, was primarily due to the increase in conspéon costs of $2.0 million, of which $237,000atet to share-
based compensation. At December 31, 2008, our beatlfor SG&A functions totaled 34 employees, corega
with 27 employees at December 31, 2007. Legal esgealso increased during this period by $955,60&hich
$576,000 related to patent applications and $685r8lated to the settlement of an arbitration nmaEecilities
expenses also increased by $246,000 and insurapeeses increased by $273,000 in 2008 as compaZaDy.

Share-Based Compensation— Total compensation cost for our share-based paygwas $3.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $2.@mflhir the year ended December 31, 2007. Reseatt
development expense included share-based compemséthpproximately $1.5 million and $663,000 ir08Gnd
2007, respectively. SG&A expenses included shasedaompensation of approximately $2.2 million and
$1.9 million in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Adefcember 31, 2008, $6.5 million of total unrecogdiz
compensation costs related to non-vested stockmgptind restricted stock awards is expected tedmgnized over
a weighted average period of 2.8 years.
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Interest Income — Interest income was $1.7 million for the yeadet December 31, 2008 compared to
$4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 200ie decrease in interest income was primarily duewer
interest rates and lower average cash and cashadepii balances in 2008 as compared to the sandper2007.

Net Loss — Net loss for the year ended December 31, 20@8$48.7 million, or $0.61 per common share,
compared to $23.9 million, or $0.32 per common sliar the year ended December 31, 2007. The inelieaset
loss was primarily due to an increase in operatixgenses, partially offset by increases in revenues

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existiogsh and cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2098ad
cash and cash equivalents of approximately $67l&miWe will continue to have significant cashytgrements to
support our product development activities. The am@nd timing of cash requirements will dependtensuccess
of our clinical development programs, regulatorg amarket acceptance, and the resources we devidedarch ar
other commercialization activities.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsleill be sufficient to fund our operations forla@ast the
next twelve months. Currently, we anticipate togt cash burn of approximately $40.0 to $45.0 orillior the year
ending December 31, 2010, depending on the progfeswious preclinical and clinical programs, thming of our
manufacturing scale up and the achievement of uanivilestones under our existing collaborative agrents. We
do not expect our revenues to be sufficient to foperations for at least several years. We expefeintd our
operations going forward with existing cash resesranticipated revenues from our existing collattons and
cash that we will raise through future transactidiie may finance future cash needs through anybtiee
following financing vehicles: (i) the public offery of securities; (ii) new collaborative agreemg(it§ expansions
or revisions to existing collaborative relationghifiv) private financings; and/or (v) other equitydebt financings.

In January 2010, we filed a shelf registrationestagnt on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-164215tvhi
allows us, from time to time, to offer and sellto$100.0 million of equity or debt securities. \Way utilize this
universal shelf in the future to raise capitaluod the continued development of our product caatdil the
commercialization of our products or for other gaheorporate purposes. In June 2009, we sold appetely
$40.0 million of our common stock in a public offeg at a price of $6.50 per share under a priolf sgistration
statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-155W8u¢h was filed in November 2008.

Our existing cash and cash equivalents will noadbequate to fund our operations until we becomk ftas
positive, if ever. We cannot be certain that addgil financing will be available when needed og\éilable,
financing will be obtained on favorable terms. Eare unable to raise sufficient funds, we willcheedelay, scale
back or eliminate some or all of our research aketbpment programs, delay the launch of our prodacdidates,
if approved, and/or restructure our operationsudfraise additional funds by issuing equity se@sjtsubstantial
dilution to existing stockholders could resultwié raise additional funds by incurring debt finanggithe terms of
the debt may involve significant cash payment @iti@ns as well as covenants that may restrict bilityato operat:
our business.

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operations was $40.1 million dytire year ended December 31, 2009 compared to
$35.4 million of net cash used in operations duthmgyear ended December 31, 2008. This changerivaarily
due to increased operating expenses of approxiynéie.9 million and timing of accounts payable payts;
partially offset by increased partnership paymefigpproximately $18.1 million during 2009 as comgzhto 2008.

Net cash used in operations was $35.4 million dytiire year ended December 31, 2008 compared tqCKI8
of net cash used in operations during the yearc&ebBdeember 31, 2007. This change was primarilytduecreased
operating expenses of approximately $27.2 millisnwvall as reduced receipts from partnership paysneft
approximately $10.2 million during 2008 as compa@g007.
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.5iamlduring the year ended December 31, 2009 cordgare
$1.2 million during the year ended December 318200is was primarily due to an increase in purebaxf
property and equipment during 2009.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.2iamlduring the year ended December 31, 2008 cordgare
$2.4 million during the year ended December 31,720bis was primarily due to a decrease in purcha$@ropert
and equipment during 2008.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $4%idion during the year ended December 31, 2009 com|
to $2.6 million during the year ended December2BD8. Net cash provided by financing activitiesingi2009
primarily consisted of net proceeds of $38.2 millfoom the sale of our common stock in June 20@D an
$7.2 million from warrant and stock option exersisdet cash provided by financing activities durdti8
primarily consisted of proceeds from warrant amalstoption exercises.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $RiBion during the year ended December 31, 2008 mzmed
to $56.0 million during the year ended December2BD;7. Net cash provided by financing activitiesiy 2008
primarily consisted of proceeds from warrant amtlstoption exercises. Net cash provided by finageictivities
during 2007 primarily consisted of approximatel\2&bmillion in proceeds, net of issuance costsnfeales of our
common stock and approximately $4.0 million in preds from warrant and stock option exercises.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements As of December 31, 2009, we did not have amgtie@iships with
unconsolidated entities or financial partnershiush as entities often referred to as structureshfie or special
purpose entities, which would have been establighethe purpose of facilitating off-balance shastngements or
other contractually narrow or limited purposesatidition, we did not engage in trading activitiegdlving non-
exchange traded contracts. As such, we are notialfteexposed to any financing, liquidity, marlatcredit risk
that could arise if we had engaged in these reishkiips.

Contractual Obligations— As of December 31, 2009, future minimum paymeioks under our contractual
obligations are as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations: Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Operating lease $ 6,733,29 $ 2,148,74.  $4,495,320 $ 89,22t $ —
License payment 1,580,00! 305,00( 610,00( 610,00( 55,00(
Purchase obligations(; 11,940,18 10,533,93 1,312,501 93,75( —
Total $20,253,47 $12,987,67  $6,417,820  $792,97¢ $ 55,00(

(1) Purchase obligations include outstanding purcheders for outsourced research and developmentcssrior
our various preclinical and clinical programs, floe manufacturing of our products for clinical ammnmercial
use and other recurring purchases and services im#gie normal course of busine

As of December 31, 2009, we had no long-term debapital lease obligations.

Our future capital uses and requirements depenmtuorerous forward-looking factors. These factors may
include, but are not limited to, the following:

« the rate of progress and cost of research and @@weint activities
« the number and scope of our research activi

« the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending andecihg any patent claims and other intellectuapprty
rights;

 our ability to establish and maintain product diseny and development collaboratiol
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« the effect of competing technological and marketettgoments
« the terms and timing of any collaborative, licegsamd other arrangements that we may establistk
« the extent to which we acquire o-license new products, technologies or busine:

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Pegdidoption of Recent Accounting
Pronouncement, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemfmmta discussion of recent accounting
pronouncements and their effect, if any, on the gamy.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our primary exposure to market risk is interesbme sensitivity, which is affected by changes mdleneral
level of U.S. interest rates, particularly becatigemajority of our investments are in short-terarketable
securities. The primary objective of our investmectivities is to preserve principal while at tlzere time
maximizing the income we receive from our investtaawithout significantly increasing risk. Some bétsecurities
that we invest in may be subject to market riskisTheans that a change in prevailing interest mrat@eg cause the
value of the investment to fluctuate. For examiflee purchase a security that was issued witlkedfinterest rate
and the prevailing interest rate later rises, #lee of our investment will probably decline. Tonmiize this risk,
we typically invest all, or substantially all, ofiocash in money market funds that invest primanlgovernment
securities. Our investment policy also permits gtaeents in a variety of securities including comererpaper and
government and non-government debt securitiesefreial, money market funds are not subject to naidte
because the interest paid on such funds fluctwataghe prevailing interest rate. As of Decembgr 3009, we did
not have any holdings of derivative financial ormeoodity instruments, or any foreign currency denaated
transactions, and all of our cash and cash equitsalgere in money market mutual funds and othegstments that
we believe to be highly liquid.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

Our financial statements are annexed to this rdmginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdietesigned to ensure that information requivdukt
disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorgeacessed, summarized and reported within the i@ekpecifie
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rubesfarms, and that such information is accumulated
communicated to our management, including our Chiefcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decision regardinguiegd disclosure. In designing and evaluating tiseldsure
controls and procedures, management recognizedlyatontrols and procedures, no matter how waligted and
operated, can only provide reasonable assuranaehadving the desired control objectives, and athéing a
reasonable level of assurance, management nedgssasirequired to apply its judgment in evaluatihg cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and praoes.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer
and principal financial officer, we conducted amlenation of our disclosure controls and procedwuassuch term is
defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated undeStdwurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Basélis
evaluation, our principal executive officer and puncipal financial officer concluded that our dissure controls
and procedures were effective as of the end gpéhnied covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changes in ournaterontrol over financial reporting that occurdding the
quarter ended December 31, 2009, that have mayeaifédcted, or are reasonably likely to materiaffect our
internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting. Internal control over financial repogiis defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15¢frpulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as aggsdesigned by, or under the supervision of, oocipal
executive and principal financial officers and efézl by our board of directors, management and gigsonnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation iofaincial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting principles and gretuthose
policies and procedures that:

 Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@ctions an
dispositions of our asse!

« Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iah
statements in accordance with generally accepteauating principles, and that receipts and expengkt ar
being made only in accordance with authorizatidnsuo management and directors; ¢

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ose
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffiact on our financial statemen

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation afatiffeness to future periods are subject to thethiat controls
may become inadequate because of changes in anrglitir that the degree of compliance with thecesi or
procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Det®m31,
2009. In making this assessment, our managemedtthseriteria set forth by the Committee of Spoimgp
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOpternal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management concludeddhwtDecember 31, 2009, our internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on thoséecia.

The independent registered public accounting flrat fudited the consolidated financial statemératsdre
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K hasiestan audit report on the effectiveness of owriral control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 200% Teport appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.’s iv@kecontrol over financial reporting as of Decem®gy
2009, based on criteria established in Internalt@br— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisftleen COSO criteria). Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fte assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting included in the accompanying Managetis Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express an opinion on the camyfsainternal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and ¢ipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabsessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethaudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. maimégi, in all material respects, effective interraitcol over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, basethe COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedislozyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of December 319 200 2008,
and the related consolidated statements of opestaash flows and stockholders’ equity for eacthefthree years
in the period ended December 31, 2009 and our reladed March 12, 2010 expressed an unqualifiediapi
thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
San Diego, California

March 12, 2010
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Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our DefipifProxy
Statement (the “Proxy Statement”) to be filed with Securities and Exchange Commission in conmeetith our
2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the hagdlection of Directors.” The information requitéy this
item regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of Seeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedcimfiorated
by reference to the information under the captiGorhpliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Actbe
contained in the Proxy Statement. The informatemuired by this item regarding our code of ethicimcorporated
by reference to the information under the capti@ode of Conduct and Ethics” to be contained inRnaxy
Statement. The information required by this itegareling our audit committee is incorporated by nexfee to the
information under the caption “Board Meetings arahinittees - Audit Committee” to be contained in Buoxy
Statement.

Executive Officers

Jonathan E. Lim, M.D. (38Rresident, Chief Executive Officer and Director. Dm became employee numl|
five when he joined Halozyme in May 2003 as Presidead CEO. He was elected to the Board of Diredtor
October 2003 and served as Chairman from April 200@ecember 2005. Under Dr. Lim’s leadership, Hghoe
has raised over $225 million from financings anthooate partnerships, signed major alliances wihHe and
Baxter, received two FDA approvals, for HYLENEX a@dmulase, and transitioned into a NASDAQ listed
company with approximately 140 employees. From 2002003, Dr. Lim was a management consultant at
McKinsey & Company, where he specialized in thelthezare industry, serving a wide range of compsifiem
start-ups to Fortune 500 multinationals in the hempmaceutical, medical products and payor/provsggments.
From 1999 to 2001, Dr. Lim was a National Instituté Health Postdoctoral Fellow conducting clinioatcomes
research at Harvard Medical School. Dr. Lim’s pssfenal experience also includes clinical trairimgeneral
surgery at the New York Hospital-Cornell Medicaln® and Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Centeurféer
and President of a health care technology startapnding Editor-in-Chief of the McGill Journal bfedicine;
basic science and clinical research at the Satkutes for Biological Studies and the Massachudejts and Ear
Infirmary; and membership on the strategic planmiogmittee of the American Medical Association fra602 to
2005. Dr. Lim earned his B.S., with honors, and MhSnolecular biology from Stanford Universityshil.D. from
McGill University and his M.P.H. in health care nagement from Harvard University.

Gregory |. Frost, Ph.D. (38)ice President, Chief Scientific Officer and DirectDr. Frost co-founded
Halozyme in 1999 and has spent more than fifteansyeonducting research on the extracellular maber his te
years at Halozyme, Dr. Frost has led the R&D efftndm discovery through FDA approval for a numbk
biotechnology products. Prior to Halozyme, he w&si@ntist at the Sidney Kimmel Cancer Center (SK@@ere
he focused much of his work studying tumor physigland developing enzyme platform technologies.reigarch
in the Department of Pathology at the UniversitfCalifornia, San Francisco, led directly to theification,
cloning, and characterization of the human hyaligase gene family, and the discovery of severahbwlic
disorders. He has authored multiple scientific pegrewed and invited articles in the matrix bigldigeld and is an
inventor on several key patents. Dr. Frost is a bwmof the American Association for Cancer Researchthe
American Society of Clinical Oncology. Dr. Frostrégistered to practice before the U.S. Patenflaademark
Office, and earned his B.A. in biochemistry and ecolar biology from the University of Californiaasa Cruz, ar
his Ph.D. in the Department of Pathology at theversity of California, San Francisco.

Kurt A. Gustafson (42)Vice President, Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Gafston joined Halozyme in 2009 with
extensive operational and managerial experienfieancial planning and analysis, accounting, treasund
international responsibility gained during his ¥ays with Amgen Inc. In his most recent positianyace Presider
Manufacturing Finance, Mr. Gustafson had finanmaponsibility for each of Amgen’s worldwide
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manufacturing sites and the Cost Accounting Grélgowas responsible for the financial planning, @astounting,
capital planning and procurement activities at ezfdhese sites from 2006 to 2009. From 2004 td5200

Mr. Gustafson was Vice President, Finance and CiH@y@en Europe, responsible for financial plannamgl
accounting for European operations. Stationed iiizéwand, Mr. Gustafson was responsible for Amgen’
International Operations, which spanned EuropeMiuglle East, Eastern Europe, North Africa and Aaig. From
2000 to 2004, Mr. Gustafson headed up Corporaten€ial Planning and Analysis, most recently as Voesident,
Corporate Financial Planning & Analysis. In thigerche was responsible for worldwide consolidatidthe
company’s forecasts. He also led the Corporaterigssi Analysis group, which provided financial aedision
support to the Product Strategy Teams. From 192080, Mr. Gustafson held multiple positions in Aenés
Treasury group with increasing levels of respofisihimost recently serving as Treasurer, whereversaw the tax
department and the customer finance group. Prifmining Amgen, Mr. Gustafson worked in public asoting as
Staff Auditor at Laventhol & Horwath in Chicago. ldarned a B.A. in accounting from North Park Unsitgrin
Chicago and an M.B.A from University of Californlags Angeles.

Jonathan A. Leff, M.D. (52Yice President, Chief Medical Officer. Dr. Leff jggd Halozyme in 2009 with
extensive experience in clinical development andioaé affairs, and a proven track record in phareudical
product development from early stage moleculeautinalobal filing, approval and launch. From 2062009,

Dr. Leff served at Hoffmanha Roche, Inc. as Vice President and Global Ha#thrhmation Clinical Developme
and Disease Biology Leadership Team member. WhiRoahe, he helped lead the development of prodacts
inflammation, including managing the clinical deM@inent department on a global basis for inflammmapimducts
in registration phase development, such as MabTh&auxan®, ocrelizumab, and Actemfa From 2002 to
2007, Dr. Leff was at Amgen Inc., where he servedtmecently as Vice President, North American Maldi
Affairs. His responsibilities included leadershipaodepartment of 500 people, and the oversigbttberapeutic
areas, 8 marketed products and 4 late stage pgpgioducts, which involved the support and growvith o
blockbuster brands: Neupog@n Neulast® , Epoger®, Aranesp®, and Enbre® . In his prior role at Amgen,

Dr. Leff was Senior Medical Director and Departmelead of Osteoporosis Research, where he was rabjeofor
conducting Phase 2 and 3 osteoporosis clinica$tits denosumab in over 10,000 patients, inclu@ing800 patiet
fracture study. From 1994 to 2002, Dr. Leff wad/atrck & Co., where he performed Phase 1 througls®Ha
clinical research studies for Singul&ir a leukotriene receptor antagonist, which resuhealglobal filing and
regulatory approval. From 1990 to 1994, Dr. Leffsveafaculty member in the Pulmonary Division of Braversity
of Colorado School of Medicine, with responsibégifor patient care, teaching and basic research.dif received
board certification in Internal Medicine, Pulmona#gdicine and Critical Care Medicine. He receivésiBlLA. in
chemistry and M.D. from the University of Pennsylia

Robert L. Little (60)Vice President, Chief Commercial Officer. Mr. Léttloined Halozyme in 2006 with
extensive experience in the pharmaceutical industgeneral management, commercial operationss saiée
marketing and business development. From 2003@6,24r. Little was Senior Vice President of Comniairc
Operations at Neurocrine Biosciences, where herasgonsible for building and managing the salesmaarketing
functions. During his tenure, Mr. Little put in pkaa fully integrated commercial organization, intthg a marketin
team, a 200-person CNS sales force and full lagiktind infrastructure support in order to co-detaloft ® with
Pfizer and in preparation for the introduction diblon® . From 1985 to 2003, Mr. Little was at Pharmaaia, |
where his most recent position was Group Vice Heggj Diversified Products. His responsibilitiesluded
managing Pharmacia’s Diversified Products busireessyell as forming a new global business unit ingrgricing,
reimbursement and health outcomes groups to focusioent industry issues, pricing and drug valiesm 1999
to 2001, Mr. Little was Group Vice President, SpégiProducts and worldwide head of a $2.5 billiglnbal
specialty products business (ophthalmology, endotgy, neurology and others). Mr. Little previouskld a
number of positions within Pharmacia, includingdfdent and Managing Director of Pharmacia in Mildaly,
President of Pharmacia & UpJohn in Canada andd@essof Pharmacia, Inc. in Canada. Prior to joirftgirmacia,
he held positions at Adria Laboratories and Milebdaratories/Bayer AG in the United Kingdom, Itahdahe
United States. Mr. Little earned his degree in eooiss and finance from the West London Busines®8¢lkaling
Technical College.

William J. Fallon (53)Vice President, Manufacturing & Operations. Mr.l6aljoined Halozyme in 2006 as
Vice President, Manufacturing & Operations. Higo@ssibilities include oversight of all aspectsmtirnal and
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external manufacturing and facilities operatiorsswell as bioprocess development. Prior to Halozymeeserved as
President and Chief Executive Officer of CytovaBaglogics, a contract manufacturing organizatioat forovides
manufacturing and development services to the dhotelogy industry. From 2001 to 2003, he was Vicesklent o
Technical Operations at Genzyme Corporation, hakigld the same position at Novazyme Pharmaceutilcels
prior to its acquisition by Genzyme in 2001. Mrliéa joined Novazyme from Transkaryotic Therapigbere he
was Vice President of Manufacturing from 1998 tO20From 1993 to 1998, he was employed in several
management positions for the Ares-Serono Groupyditeg Vice President, U.S. Manufacturing Operagidn this
role, he served as general manager, overseeimgddection and distribution of all of Serono’s amyed
biotechnology products in the United States. Fr@&®01to 1992, he was Director of Manufacturing fen@cor,
Inc. His prior experience also includes various aggment and operational roles at Invitron Corporasind
TravenolGenentech Diagnostics. Mr. Fallon earned a B.garine science and a B.A. in biology from Long sl
University, and an M.S. in biology from Northeastémiversity.

David A. Ramsay (45Yice President, Corporate Development. Mr. Rameaef Halozyme in 2003.
Mr. Ramsay was Chief Financial Officer from 20080tigh May 2009. He has over 20 years of corporasn€ial
experience spanning several industries. From 20@003, he was Vice President, Chief Financial c@ffiof
Lathian Systems, a provider of technology-baseeksstlutions for the life sciences industry. Priokathian,
Mr. Ramsay was Vice President, Treasurer of ICNrifahaeuticals, now called Valeant Pharmaceuticals
International, a multinational, specialty pharmdimal company. Mr. Ramsay joined ICN in 1998 frorRGO,
where he spent four years in various financialgoteost recently serving as Manager of Financiahfihg &
Analysis for the company’s 1,700-station West Céxthail Marketing Network. Prior to ARCO, he senasiVice
President, Controller for Security Pacific AsiamBaa subsidiary of Security Pacific Corporatior began his
career as an auditor at Deloitte & Touche, wherebtained his CPA license. Mr. Ramsay served agr@ha of
the Audit Committee and on the Board of DirectansAxxora Life Sciences, Inc., a privately held,ndavide
research reagent company which was acquired by Bimatem in 2007. Mr. Ramsay graduated from theversity
of California, Berkeley, with a B.S. in businesgraistration and earned his M.B.A. with a dual nmajofinance
and strategic management from The Wharton Schdbkdtniversity of Pennsylvania.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the information under the captio
“Executive Compensation” to be contained in thexiprStatement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Information relating to securities authorized fesuance under our equity compensation plans ferdbtin
“Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Rield Stockholder Matters and Issuer PurchasesuifyEq
Securities” above in this Annual Report. The othésrmation required by this item is incorporatedrbference to
the information under the caption “Security Owngushf Certain Beneficial Owners and Management Ratated
Stockholder Matters” to be contained in the Protgt&nent.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to the information under the capt@ertain
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Dirdéatiependence” to be contained in the Proxy Statém

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Servict

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to the information under the captio
“Principal Accounting Fees and Services” contaiimethe Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) Documents filed as part of this report.

1.

2.

Financial Statements:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2@D20G08 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Eacheiviears Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Eacheofviears Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquityHach of the Years Ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 200 F-5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-6

List of all Financial Statement schedules. Ahedules are omitted because they are not ap@icatihe

required information is shown in the Financial 8taénts or notes thereto.

3. List of Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regidat S-K. See part (b) below.
(b) Exhibits:
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 1@7 20y and between the Registrant and the
Registrar’s predecessor Nevada corporatiot
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiaijled with the Delaware Secretary of State on
October 7, 2007(Z
3.2  Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rightse terms of the Series A Preferred Stoc
3.3 Bylaws(2)
4.1 Amended Rights Agreement between Corporate Stoaksfer, as rights agent, and Registrant, dated
November 12, 2007(1¢
10.1  License Agreement between University of Connectnud Registrant, dated November 15, 200
1C.2  First Amendment to the License Agreement betweerdisity of Connecticut and Registrant, dated

January 9, 2006(¢

10.3* Commercial Supply Agreement with Avid Bioservicks;. and Registrant, dated February 16, 200

10.4*

First Amendment to the Commercial Supply Agreentativeen Avid Bioservices, Inc. and Registrant,
dated December 15, 2006(1

10.5* Clinical Supply Agreement between Cook PharmicaCldnd Registrant, dated August 15, 2008
1C0.6# DeliaTroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2001 Amended agstaRed Stock Plan and form of Stock Option

Agreements for options assumed thereund:e

1C0.7# 2004 Stock Plan and Form of Option Agreement theder(4)

10.8# Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside Dire’ Stock Plan(7

1C.9# Form of Stock Option Agreement (2005 Outside Dioes' Stock Plan)(11
1C.10¢ Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2005 Outside®ors’ Stock Plan)(11
1C.11#4 Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2006 Stock Plan

1C.12¢ Form of Stock Option Agreement (2006 Stock Plan)

1C.13# Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2006 Stock yPidr)
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1C.14+ Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Stock Plan

1C.15¢ Form of Stock Option Agreement (2008 Stock Plan)

1C0.16% Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2008 Stock YP24)

1C0.17#¢ Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Outside Direl Stock Plan(19

1C.18% Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2008 Outside®ors’ Stock Plan)(25

1C.194 Form of Indemnity Agreement for Directors and ExeeiOfficers(17)

1C.20#4 Outside Director Compensation Plan(:

1C.21# 2008 Senior Executive Incentive Structure(

1C.22# 2009 Senior Executive Incentive Plan(.

1C.23# 2010 Senior Executive Incentive Plan(.

1C.24% Change in Control Policy(2(

1C.25¢ Severance Policy(2:

10.26* Amended and Restated Exclusive Distribution Agresrbetween Baxter Healthcare Corporation, B
Healthcare S.A. and Registrant, dated Februarp@y(14)

1C0.27* Amended and Restated Development and Supply Agmetdmetween Baxter Healthcare Corporation,
Baxter Healthcare S.A. and Registrant, dated Feprid 2007(14

1C.28* License and Collaboration Agreement between Baiéaithcare Corporation, Baxter Healthcare S.A.
and Registrant, dated February 14, 2007

1C.29* Enhanze Technology License and Collaboration Agesgrbetween Baxter Healthcare Corporation,
Baxter Healthcare S.A. and Registrant, dated Sdpeef, 2007(16

1C.30* License and Collaboration Agreement between F.affn-La Roche Ltd, Hoffmanbha Roche Inc. an
Registrant dated December 5, 2006(

10.31 Sublease Agreement (11404 Sorrento Valley Roafctefe as of July 2, 2007 (1

10.32 Standard Industrial Net Lease (11388 Sorrento Yadfead), effective as of July 26, 2007(.

10.33 Underwriting Agreement between Halozyme Therapsutitc. and Jefferies & Company, Inc., dated
June 23, 2009(2¢

211  Subsidiaries of Registrant(

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amenc

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amenc

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed November 20, 200°

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registradgfinitive proxy statement filed with the SECForm DEF14A ol
October 11, 2007

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Reggion Statement on Form SB-2 filed with the Corssion
on April 23, 2004

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s ammemd number two to the Registration Statement on
Form SE-2 filed with the Commission on July 23, 20(

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Reggisn Statement on Form S-8 filed with the Conwsiais on
October 26, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed February 22, 200!
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed July 6, 2005
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed January 12, 200t
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(9) Incorporated by reference to the Regist’s Annual Report oForm 1(-KSB/A, filed March 29, 2005
(10) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed March 24, 2006
(11) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q, filed August 8, 200€
(12) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K/A, filed December 15, 2001
(13) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed December 21, 200!
(14) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K/A, filed February 20, 200°
(15) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed July 31, 2007
(16) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed September 12, 200
(17) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed December 20, 200
(18) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Annual Report oForm 1(-K, filed March 14, 2008
(19) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed March 19, 2008
(20) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed April 21, 2008.
(21) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q, filed May 9, 2008
(22) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q, filed November 7, 200¢
(23) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed February 9, 200¢
(24) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed June 23, 200¢
(25) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q, filed August 7, 2009
(26) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed February 8, 201(

* Confidential treatment has been requested foriogptartions of this exhibit. These portions havememitted
from this agreement and have been filed separaitighythe Securities and Exchange Commiss

# Indicates management contract or compensatorygslarrangemen

Nt U b NI s s SN S S e BN N N

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. See Iltem 15(@)%2e.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causedéeport
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedénGiy of San Diego, on March 12, 2010.

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Jonathan E. Lim, M.L

Jonathan E. Lim, M.D.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 12, 2010

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these presents, that each perBose signature appears below constitutes anoirgpp
Jonathan E. Lim and Kurt A. Gustafson, and eadheh, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact agdnts, with
full power of substitution and resubstitution, fom and in his name, place, and stead, in any hicdgacities, to
sign any and all amendments to this Annual Repod, to file the same, with all exhibits theretod ather
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission, granting unto Saduregys-in-
fact and agents, and each of them, full power aridlogity to do and perform each and every act aiytrequisite
and necessary to be done in connection therevgtfully to all intents and purposes as he mightarid do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming that albisatorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of thertheir or his
substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cattssbe done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&033, as amended, this Annual Report has begmediby
the following persons in the capacities and ondéies indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Jonathan E. Lim, M.L

Jonathan E. Lim, M.C

/sl Kurt A. Gustafsol

Kurt A. Gustafsor

/sl Gregory I. Frost, Ph.I

Gregory |. Frost, Ph.C

/s/ Kenneth J. Kelle

Kenneth J. Kelle

/sl Robert L. Engler, M.C

Robert L. Engler, M.D

/sl Kathryn E. Falber

Kathryn E. Falber;

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer), Director

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer,
Director
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director

Director
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March 12, 201

March 12, 201

March 12, 201

March 12, 201

March 12, 201
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Signature

/s/ Randal J. Kirl

Randal J. Kirk

/s/ Connie L. MatsL

Connie L. Matsu

/s/ John S. Patton, Ph.

John S. Patton, Ph.l

Title

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 12, 201

March 12, 201

March 12, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related cdasetl statements of operations, cash flows anétsitaers’
equity for each of the three years in the periatkenDecember 31, 2009. These financial statemeatha
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these fiah
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighagio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated
financial position of Halozyme Therapeutics, IncDacember 31, 2009 and 2008, and the consolidasedts of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the tlgezers in the period ended December 31, 2009, nfocmity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.’srimecontrol over financial reporting as of Decem®g, 2009,
based on criteria established in Internal Controlntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and opontedated March 12, 2010 expressed an unqualifpécion
thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2010
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current asse
Property and equipment, r

Total Asset:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred revenu

Total current liabilities
Deferred revenue, net of current port
Deferred rent, net of current porti
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity:

December 31

Preferred stock — $0.001 par value; 20,000,000eshanthorized; no shares

issued and outstandit

Common stock — $0.001 par value; 150,000,000 startwrized; 91,681,756
and 81,553,654 shares issued and outstanding anider 31, 2009 and 200!

respectively
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Total stockholder equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity

2009 2008
$ 67,46450 $ 63,715,90
4,243,90 7,264,411
1,159,55 441,32
1,573,77 2,591,14!
74,441,74 74,012,78
2,708,01 2,549,92!
$ 77,14975 $ 76,562,71

' EQUITY

$ 282049 $ 6,668,79:
6,083,85. 3,995,89
5,492,60. 3,553,73
14,396,94 14,218,41
54,989,58 45,894,72
859,83 1,069,57:
91,68: 81,55¢
178,821,85  128,948,06
(172,010,14)  (113,649,62)
6,903,38' 15,379,99
$ 77,14975 $ 76,562,71

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUES:
Revenues under collaborative agreem
Product sale

Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of product sale

Research and developme
Selling, general and administrati

Total operating expens

OPERATING LOSS
Interest incom:

NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXE!
Income tax benef

NET LOSS
Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdesshare

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
$12,70045 $ 805220, $ 3,159,93:
970,84 711,93 639,59(
13,671,30 8,764,13 3,799,52:
311,89 332,32 240,42
56,614,26  44,232,93  20,554,10
15,203,40  14,633,58 11,155,119
72,12956  59,198,84 _ 31,949,72
(58,458,26)  (50,434,70)  (28,150,20)
97,73 1,717,50. 4,254,02.
(58,360,52) (48,717,19) (23,896,18)
— (63,000) —
$(58,360,52) $(48,654,19) $(23,896,18)
$ (0.67) $ (0.61 $ (0.32)
86,700,09  79,843,70 _ 74,317,93

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating

activities:

Share-based compensatic

Depreciation and amortizatic

Loss on disposal of equipme

Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Deferred ren
Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property and equipm

Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from exercise of warrants,
Proceeds from exercise of stock options,

Net cash provided by financing activiti
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CAS

EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at beginning of peric

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at end of peric

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing arahting

activities:

Accounts payable for purchases of property andpeaent

Years Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

$(58,360,52) $(48,654,19) $(23,896,18)

4,526,03 3,695,84; 2,580,20-
1,443,73 1,047,87 576,49:
2,68¢ 4,72¢ 3,28¢
3,020,50.  (6,484,58) (416,26()
(718,22 262,14 (260,97¢)
1,017,37; (576,46)  (1,416,59)
(2,000,23)  4,788,34 2,529,34
(113,342 363,48 865,06
11,033,73  10,178,96  19,287,95
(40,148,26)  (35,373,86) (147,660
(1,461,02)  (1,159,74)  (2,365,32)
(1,461,02)  (1,159,74)  (2,365,32)
38,174,37 —  51,989,48
6,165,15: 1,726,71 2,305,84:
1,018,35 843,71 1,707,33
45,357,88 2,570,42'  56,002,66
3,748,601  (33,963,17) 53,489,68
63,71590  97,679,08 _ 44,189,40

$67,464,50 $63,71590 $97,679,08

$  143,49:

159,47.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2007

Shar+-based compensation expel

Issuance of common stock for cash,

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of warrants, n

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of stock optior

Issuance of restricted stock awa

Net loss

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 200°

Shar-based compensation expel

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of warrants, n

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of stock optior

Issuance of restricted stock awa

Net loss

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 200¢

Shar-based compensation expel

Issuance of common stock for cash,

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of warrants, n

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of stock optior

Issuance of restricted stock awa

Net loss

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 200¢

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Stockholders’

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity
68,736,99 $68,737 $ 64,111,73 $ (41,099,24) $ 23,081,23
— — 2,580,20: — 2,580,20:
5,570,39: 5,57( 51,983,91 — 51,989,48
1,783,85. 1,78¢ 2,304,05! — 2,305,84.
1,707,70! 1,70¢ 1,705,62 — 1,707,33
105,00( 10E (105) — —
— — — (23,896,18) (23,896,18)
77,903,94 77,90« 122,685,44 (64,995,42) 57,767,92
— — 3,695,84: — 3,695,84:
1,628,37. 1,62¢ 1,725,08! — 1,726,71.
1,828,83! 1,82¢ 841,88 — 843,71¢
192,50( 192 (197) — —
— — —  (48,654,19) (48,654,19)
81,553,65 81,55« 128,948,06 (113,649,62) 15,379,99
— — 4,526,03! — 4,526,03!
6,150,00! 6,15(C 38,168,22 — 38,174,37
3,140,78! 3,141 6,162,01 — 6,165,15!
717,32. 717 1,017,44 — 1,018,16.

120,00( 12C 73 — 192
(58,360,52) (58,360,52)

91,681,75 $91,68: $178,821,85 $(172,010,14) $ 6,903,38!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Business

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. (“Halozyme” or the “Qmamy”) is a biopharmaceutical company dedicateti¢o
development and commercialization of products témgehe extracellular matrix for the endocrinologycology,
dermatology and drug delivery markets. The Compaeyisting products and products under developawent
based on intellectual property covering the farofljhuman enzymes known as hyaluronidases.

The Company’s operations to date have involvedrorgag and staffing the Company, acquiring, devigp
and securing its technology and undertaking prodagelopment for its existing products and a lichiteimber of
product candidates. The Company currently has plelpiroprietary programs in various stages of neseand
development. In addition, the Company has enteveda key partnership with F. Hoffmann-La Roche) &hd
Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc. (“Roche”) to apply Enhanf?&echnology to Roche’s biological therapeutic commsi
for up to 13 targets. The Company has also eniatedwo key partnerships with Baxter Healthcareg@oation
(“Baxter”) to apply Enhanze Technology to Baxtdsislogical therapeutic compound, GAMMAGARD LIQUIDY
and to develop and supply active pharmaceuticakaignt (“API") for HYLENEX, a registered trademark of Bax
International, Inc. Baxter is responsible for tke@ution of HYLENEX clinical development, sales andrketing
strategy. There are two marketed products tharetihe Company’s technology: HYLENEX, a productdigs an
adjuvant to increase the dispersion and absorpfiather injected drugs and fluids, and Cumul@sa product use
for in vitro fertilization. Currently, the Company receives olityited revenue from the sales of HYLENEX and
from the sales of API to the third party that proglsi Cumulase, in addition to other revenues fremattnerships
with Baxter and Roche.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include twants of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and its Whmlvnec
subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc. All intercompany accauand transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acdmgn
principles (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to malstimates and assumptions that affect the amoaepasted
in the Company’s consolidated financial statemantsaccompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, thgp@ay
evaluates its estimates and judgments, which aedban historical and anticipated results and semdl on variou
other assumptions that management believes toasemable under the circumstances. By their natstanates are
subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty asduah, actual results may differ from managemesstenates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liguestments with original maturities of three mantir less
from the original purchase date.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subjectas significant concentration of credit risk consiscash and
cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Qompaintains its cash balances with one major coriale
bank. Deposits held with the bank exceed the amafuinsurance provided on such deposits.

The Company sells its products to establishedibligtyrs in the pharmaceutical industry. Credititeaded
based on an evaluation of the customer’s finarcadition. Approximately 97% and 99% of the accsunt
receivable balance as of December 31, 2009 and, 28§8ectively, represents amounts due from twtoouers.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Management evaluates the collectibility of the axts receivable based on a variety of factors gioly the length
of time the receivables are past due, the finamgalth of the customer and historical experieBesed upon the
review of these factors, the Company did not reear@llowance for doubtful accounts at Decembe28@9 and
2008. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@07, 76%, 44% and 50% of total revenues wera fr
Roche and 20%, 51% and 36% of total revenues wene Baxter, respectively.

The Company relies on two third-party manufactuferghe supply of the active pharmaceutical inggetlin
each of its current products. Payments due to thagpliers represent 4% and 39% of the accountalp@ypalance
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoicedwarhand is non-interest bearing. Accounts recee bl
recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accou@itsrently, the allowance for doubtful accountgeso as the
collectibility of accounts receivable is reasonadbgured. The Company is obligated to accept reformproduct
that does not meet product specifications. Histdlsicthe Company has not had any product retuhesgfore, no
allowance for product returns has been established.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at lower of cost or market. tCaich includes amounts related to materials @uls
incurred by the Company’s contract manufacturedeiermined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inverde are
reviewed periodically for slownoving or obsolete status. Management evaluatesattnging value of inventories
a regular basis, taking into account such factensistorical and anticipated future sales comparegliantities on
hand, the price it expects to obtain for producttheir respective markets compared with historgest and the
remaining shelf life of goods on hand.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Earipia depreciated using the straight-line methaet their
estimated useful lives of three years and leasehgidovements are amortized using the straight#iethod over
the estimated useful life of the asset or the |éase, whichever is shorter.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in alzoore with authoritative guidance for impairment or
disposal of long-lived assets. Long-lived assetsraviewed for events or changes in circumstarvekigh indicate
that their carrying value may not be recoverabte.the year ended December 31, 2009, there hasrmeen
impairment of the value of such assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash equivalents, accourusivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximates fair value. Séair Value Measurementselow for further discussion of fair value.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows the authoritative guidanceféir value measurements and disclosures, which gmon
other things, defines fair value, establishes aistent framework for measuring fair value and exjsadisclosure
for each major asset and liability category meabatdair value on either a recurring or nonreewgrasis. Fair
value is defined as an exit price that would beirsd to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lighih an orderly
transaction between market participants. As swhyélue is a market-based measurement that steuld
determined based on assumptions that market gemtits would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

The framework for measuring fair value providedexdrchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuatiestiniques
used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fenital assets or liabilitie

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included withindlelvthat are either directly or indirectly
observable; an

Level 3  Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketivty exists, therefore requiring an entity to
develop its own assumptions about the assumpti@tsrarket participants would use in prici

Cash equivalents of approximately $65.3 millioatember 31, 2009 are carried at fair value and are
classified within Level 1 of the fair value hieraycbecause they are valued based on quoted maiges for
identical securities.

Deferred Rent

Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line bagistbe initial term of any lease. The differenetvieen rent
expense accrued and amounts paid under any lesssnsant is recorded as deferred rent in the accoyimma
consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenues from product satbsadlaborative agreements. Payments receivedrunde
collaborative agreements may include nonrefundigas at the inception of the agreements, licensg failestone
payments for specific achievements designateddrctiiaborative agreements, reimbursements of refsead
development services and/or royalties on salesamfyzts resulting from collaborative agreements.

The Company recognizes revenues in accordancelhetauthoritative guidance for revenue recognitidmne
Company recognizes revenue when all of the follgwgriteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence ofreangement
exists; (2) delivery has occurred or services Haen rendered; (3) the seller’s price to the bis/éred and
determinable; and (4) collectibility is reasonahfsured.

Product Sales— Revenues from the sales of Cumulase and ARCfonulase are recognized when the transfer
of ownership occurs, which is upon shipment toGloenpany’s distributor. The Company is obligatedd¢oept
returns for product that does not meet productifipations. Historically, the Company has not hay aroduct
returns as a result of not meeting product spextifios.

In accordance with the Amended and Restated Denalaopand Supply Agreement (the “HYLENEX
Partnership”) with Baxter, the Company suppliestBawith AP| for HYLENEX at its fully burdened coptus a
margin. Baxter fills and finishes HYLENEX and holitlfor subsequent distribution, at which time ©empany
ensures it meets product specifications and redeass available for sale. Because of the Comsacgntinued
involvement in the development and production pssa#f HYLENEX, the earnings process is not congide¢o be
complete. Accordingly, the Company defers the rereeand related product costs on the API for HY LENEMil
the product is filled, finished, packaged and redéeh Baxter may only return the API for HYLENEXtte
Company if it does not conform to the specifiederia set forth in the HYLENEX Partnership or ugermination
of such agreement. The Company has historicallyohstnated that the API shipped to Baxter has ctargiy met
the specified criteria, therefore, no allowancedarduct returns has been established. In additienCompany
receives product-based payments upon the sale bEN¥EX by Baxter, in accordance with the terms & th
HYLENEX Partnership. Product sales revenues aregrized as the Company earns such revenues based on
Baxter’s shipments of HYLENEX to its distributordv@n such amounts can be reasonably estimated.

Collaborative Agreements— The Company analyzes each element of its collaiveragreements to determi
the appropriate revenue recognition. The Compaoygiizes revenue on nonrefundable upfront payments
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

and license fees in which it has an ongoing invaleet or performance obligation over the periodighi§icant
involvement under the related agreements. The Coynpcognizes milestone payments upon the achieveofie
specified milestones if: (1) the milestone is sahsve in nature and the achievement of the milesteas not
reasonably assured at the inception of the agregif®rhe fees are nonrefundable and (3) our pexnce
obligations after the milestone achievement wilitimue to be funded by our collaborator at a lexehparable to
the level before the milestone achievement. Angstilne payments received prior to satisfying thegenue
recognition criteria are recorded as deferred regeReimbursements of research and developmeritsgmare
recognized as revenue during the period in whiehstitvices are performed. Royalties to be recdiaseéd on sales
of licensed products by the Company’s collaboraiteesrporating the Company’s products will be retiagd as
earned.

Cost of Sales

Cost of product sales consists primarily of rawemnats, third-party manufacturing costs, fill amdigh costs
and freight costs associated with the sales of CasayAPI| for Cumulase and the API for HYLENEX.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include saaddsenefits, facilities and other overhead expense
external clinical trials, research-related manufeant services, contract services and other outsigeenses.
Research and development expenses are chargedraiiops as incurred when these expenditures reldhe
Company'’s research and development efforts and headternative future uses.

Advance payments, including nonrefundable amodiatgjoods or services that will be used or rendéoed
future research and development activities arergfeand capitalized. Such amounts will be reccgphizs an
expense as the related goods are delivered oeldted services are performed or such time whe@tmpany doe
not expect the goods to be delivered or servicéetperformed.

Milestone payments that the Company makes in cdimmewith in-licensed technology or product candéa
are expensed as incurred when there is uncertaimgceiving future economic benefits from the fised
technology or product candidates. The Company densithe future economic benefits from the licertsetinolog'
or product candidates to be uncertain until sutgnised technology or product candidates are apgfove
marketing by the U.S. Food and Drug Administrationwhen other significant risk factors are abatddnagement
has viewed future economic benefits for all of icensed technology or product candidates to bertainn and has
expensed these amounts for accounting purposes.

Clinical Trial Expenses

Expenses related to clinical trials are accrue@dthasm the Company’s estimates and/or represensafiiom
service providers regarding work performed, inahgdactual level of patient enroliment, completidrpatient
studies and clinical trials progress. Other inctdeoosts related to patient enrollment or treatnae@ accrued when
reasonably certain. If the contracted amounts areified (for instance, as a result of changes éendimical trial
protocol or scope of work to be performed), the @any modifies its accruals accordingly on a prospedasis.
Revisions in the scope of a contract are chargedpense in the period in which the facts that gise to the
revision become reasonably certain. Historicalig, Company has had no material changes in itsalitiial
expense accruals that would have had a materiagdhgn its consolidated results of operationsrarftial position

Share-Based Payments

The Company records compensation expense assouitkestock options and other share-based compensat
in accordance with the authoritative guidance focls compensation. The cost of employee services
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

received in exchange for an award of equity ins&oiis measured at the grant date, based on tineagst fair
value of the award, and is recognized as expensestraight-line basis, net of estimated forfeisy@ver the
requisite service period of the award. Share-basethensation expense recognized during the pesibdged on
the value of the portion of share-based paymentdsshat is ultimately expected to vest duringpgbaod. Share-
based compensation expense for an award with arpgfice condition is recognized when the achievéwfesuch
performance condition is determined to be probdbtbe outcome of such performance condition isdetermined
to be probable or is not met, no compensation es@penrecognized and any recognized compensatjpense is
reversed. As share-based compensation expensenisethds based on awards ultimately expected ty itdsas
been reduced for estimated forfeitures. The guidaequires forfeitures to be estimated at the tfrgrant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifzddrfeitures differ from those estimates. Pretieg forfeitures
were estimated to be approximately 10% for emplsyedhe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 &0nd tzdksec
on the Company’s historical experience and thosts gieer group.

Total share-based compensation expense relatédte-based awards for the years ended Decemb2039,
2008 and 2007 was comprised of the following:

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Research and developme $2,441,90 $1,541,00. $ 662,69(
Selling, general and administrati 2,084,12. 2,154,83! 1,917,51
Shar-based compensation expense before t 4,526,033 3,695,84. 2,580,20:
Related income tax benef — — —
Shar-based compensation expel $4,526,031  $3,695,84.  $2,580,20:
Net shar-based compensation expense, per basic and diluee $ 0.0t % 0.0t % 0.02
Shar-based compensation expense fr

Stock options $3,648,17. $2,691,57. $1,857,24!

Restricted stock awart 877,85t 1,004,27. 722,95!

$4,526,031  $3,695,84. $2,580,20

Cash flows resulting from tax deductions in exaashe cumulative compensation cost recognizeaions
exercised (excess tax benefits) are classifiedsls inflows provided by financing activities andlcautflows used
in operating activities. Due to the Company’s st position, no tax benefits have been recogrirzéte
consolidated statements of cash flows.

The cost of noremployee services received in exchange for an aefaeduity instrument is measured base:
either the fair value of the consideration receigethe fair value of the equity instruments issughichever is moi
reliably measurable. The Company recognized appratély $93,000, $0 and $0 in stock-based compemsati
expense related to stock options granted to noriegraes for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002007,
respectively. There were no non-employee stocloaptoutstanding at December 31, 2009.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded in accordance with aitatioe guidance for accounting for income taxekiol
requires the recognition of deferred tax assetdiabdities to reflect the future tax consequenoésvents that have
been recognized in the Company'’s consolidated &iighistatements or tax returns. Measurement ofiéfierred
items is based on enacted tax laws. In the everfutiare consequences of differences between fialareporting
bases and tax bases of the Company’s assets hilitidia result in a deferred tax asset, an evanabf
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the probability of being able to realize the futbemefits indicated by such assets is required.Gdrapany records
a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tagtago the amount that is more likely than ndid¢oealized.
Management has considered future taxable incomeiagoing tax planning strategies in assessing ¢lee for the
valuation allowance. In the event the Company we@etermine that it would be able to realize thteded tax
assets in the future in excess of their net recbaheounts, an adjustment to the deferred tax assetil increase
the income in the period such determination wasanhitewise, should the Company determine thabitild not b
able to realize all or part of the net deferredaasets in the future, an adjustment to the deféaeassets would be
charged to income in the period such determinatias made.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsifiq“FASB”) issued additional guidance which reqai
the impact of an uncertain income tax positionl@iticome tax return must be recognized at thesammount th;
is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon abylithe relevant taxing authority. An uncertain imeotax position
will not be recognized if it has less than a 50Réllhood of being sustained. Additionally, the psions under this
guidance also provides guidance on derecogniti@asurement, classification, interest and penaliesyunting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. The @any adopted the provisions under this guidancéaomary 1,
2007. The adoption of these provisions had no impat¢he Company’s consolidated financial positiomesults of
operations. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the @ogip unrecognized income tax benefits and uncetée
provisions were not material and would not, if igaized, affect the effective tax rate.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed byidiyinet loss for the period by the weighted averag
number of common shares outstanding during thegewithout consideration for common stock equingde Stocl
options, unvested stock awards and warrants argidered to be common equivalents and are only declun the
calculation of diluted earnings per common sharemtieir effect is dilutive. Because of the Compamet loss, a
outstanding stock options, unvested stock awardsamrants were excluded from the calculation. Coenpany
has excluded the following stock options, unvestedk awards and warrants from the calculationilatet net los:
per common share because their effect is antiradut

2009 2008 2007
Stock options and awari 7,924,26! 7,447,28! 7,914,97!
Warrants — 3,230,65! 4,859,03!

7,924,261 10,677,94  12,774,00

Segment Information

The Company operates in one segment, which isstearch, development and commercialization of misdu
based on the extracellular matrix for the endodoigp, oncology, dermatology and drug delivery mésk&he chief
operating decision-makers review the operatingltesm an aggregate basis and manage the operasamsingle
operating segment.

Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB approvéde FASB Accounting Standards Codificatftive “Codification”) as the
single source of authoritative U.S. GAAP for alhagovernmental entities, with the exception of 8€C and its
staff. The Codification, which launched on Jul2@009, changes the referencing and organizatiosadumnting
guidance and became effective for interim and anper@ods ending after September 15, 2009. The f@atibn is
now the single official source of authoritative UGAAP (other than guidance issued by the SECemguling
existing FASB, American Institute of Certified PicbAccountants, Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITERid
related literature. Only one level of authoritatiyeS. GAAP now exists. All other literature is calered non-
authoritative. The Codification does not change. G8AP. The Company adopted the Codification effect
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July 1, 2009. The adoption of the Codification dat have a material impact on the Company’s codat#d
financial position or results of operations.

Effective April 1, 2009, the Company adopted autative guidance for subsequent events, which éstads
general standards of accounting for and disclostiexents that occur after the balance sheet datbdjore
financial statements are issued or are availabte tissued. The guidance sets forth the circumsetanader which
an entity should recognize events or transactiossming after the balance sheet date in its firdmstatements. Ti
adoption of the guidance for subsequent eventsdaidhave a material impact on the Company’s codat#d
financial position or results of operations.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted F&88w guidance on accounting for collaborative
arrangements. This statement focuses on how thiepér a collaborative agreement should accourntdets
incurred and revenue generated on sales to thittépahow sharing payments pursuant to a collalmragreemer
should be presented in the statement of operasindsertain related disclosure questions. The amopf the new
guidance on accounting for collaborative arrangdmdiul not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adoptedaghoritative guidance for business combinatiofiss T
new guidance replaces prior guidance on the subjettrequires the acquirer of a business to rezegamd measu
the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilitisstaned, and any non-controlling interest in theuaeg at fair value.
Additionally, it also requires transaction costiated to the business combination to be expensatased. The
adoption of the new guidance for business comhinatdid not have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results ofragiens.

Effective January 1, 2009 the Company adopted FASBW guidance on determining whether instruments
granted in shared-based payment transactions gieipating securities. The new guidance clarifibdt all
outstanding unvested share-based payment awardsotitain rights to nonforfeitable dividends pagate in
undistributed earnings with common shareholdersards of this nature are considered participatingisges and
the two-class method of computing basic and dilehings per share must be applied. The adopfitnsonew
guidance did not have a material impact on the Gomis consolidated financial position or result©pérations.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted FAS8w guidance on determining whether an instrdumen
(or an embedded feature) is indexed to an entitys stock. The guidance provides that an entityikhose a two-
step approach to evaluate whether an equity-lifikeshcial instrument (or embedded feature) is iretkto its own
stock, including evaluating the instrumentontingent exercise and settlement provisioralst clarifies the impa
of foreign currency denominated strike prices ark®et-based employee stock option valuation inséntsion the
evaluation. The adoption of this new guidance ditlhrave a material impact on the Company’s conatsidi
financial position or results of operations.

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2009, the FASB issued Accounting StatsdUpdate (“ASU”) No. 2009-13, Revenue
Recognition (Topic 605Multiple-Deliverable Revenue ArrangementsSU No. 2009-13 requires an entity to
allocate arrangement consideration at the inceti@an arrangement to all of its deliverables bametheir relative
selling prices. ASU No. 2009-13 eliminates the ofthe residual method of allocation and requihes t
relative-selling-price method in all circumstanaesvhich an entity recognizes revenue for an areamgnt with
multiple deliverables subject to Accounting StanldaCode 605-25. The guidance in ASU No. 2009-Efective
prospectively for revenue arrangements enteredointoaterially modified in fiscal years beginning or after
June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. The gamy does not expect the adoption of ASU No. 20®%lhave
a material impact on its consolidated financialipms or results of operations.
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3. Inventory

Inventory consists of the following as of DecemBgy 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Raw materials $1,159,55. $435,38¢
Finished good — 5,93

$1,159,55.  $441,32!

Inventory is used in the manufacture of the Com{shyLENEX and Cumulase products and is statedat t
lower of cost or market.

4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the followingfa®ecember 31, 2009 and 20(

2009 2008
Research equipme $3,838,300 $2,699,70
Computer and office equipme 1,333,92. 1,079,03.
Leasehold improvemen 981,14( 814,06°
6,153,37. 4,592,80
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (3,445,35) (2,042,88)

$2,708,01  $2,549,92!

Depreciation and amortization expense was apprdrigndl1.4 million, $1.0 million and $576,000, fdretyear
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsactivel

5. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following as ofdbawer 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Accrued compensation and payroll ta $2,945,49;  $2,060,86!
Accrued outsourced research and clinical trial espe 2,609,81! 1,543,32.
Accrued expense 528,53 391,71(

$6,083,85  $3,995,89

6. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of the following as ofémber 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Collaborative agreemen $50,390,40  $44,905,03
Product sale 10,091,79 4,543,42!
Total deferred revent 60,482,19 49,448,45
Less current portio 5,492,60: 3,553,73l
Deferred revenue, net of current port $54,989,58  $45,894,72
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Roche Partnership— In December 2006, the Company and Roche enietea license and collaborative
agreement for Enhanze Technology (the “Roche Patip). Under the terms of the Roche PartnerdRigrhe
obtained a worldwide, exclusive license to develod commercialize product combinations of rHUPHRS,
Companys proprietary recombinant human hyaluronidase,ugnib thirteen Roche target compounds resultingn
the collaboration. Roche paid $20.0 million to @@mpany in December 2006 as an initial upfront paytfior the
application of rHUPH20 to three pre-defined Rocludogic targets. Through December 31, 2009, Rodlié an
aggregate of $13.5 million in connection with Rdchelection of two additional exclusive targets andual licens
fees for the right to designate the remaining tsrgs exclusive targets. In addition, at Decembtef809 the
Company was entitled to receive $3.5 million, whiglncluded in deferred revenue at December 3292
connection with annual license maintenance feethioremaining Roche targets.

Due to the Company’s continuing involvement obligias (for example, support activities associateith wi
rHUPH20 enzyme), revenues from the upfront paymeiusive designation fees and annual license terzmce
fees were deferred and are being recognized oedetim of the Roche Partnership. The Company reézedn
revenue from the upfront payment, exclusive degigndees and annual license maintenance fees uhedtoche
Partnership in the amounts of approximately $1.Monj $1.2 million and $1.2 million for the yeaended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Baxter Partnerships— In September 2007, the Company and Baxter ethiate an Enhanze Technology
License and Collaboration Agreement (the “Gammagandnership”). Under the terms of the Gammagard
Partnership, Baxter paid the Company a nonrefuredafront payment of $10.0 million. Due to the Camy's
continuing involvement obligations (for exampleppart activities associated with rHuPh20 enzynie), t
$10.0 million upfront payment was deferred andamb recognized over the term of the GammagardPesttip.
The Company recognized revenue from the upfront@eng under the Gammagard Partnership in the amofints
approximately $606,000 for the years ended Dece®be2009 and 2008 and $192,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

In February 2007, the Company and Baxter amendgaicexisting agreements for HYLENEX and entered
into a new agreement for kits and formulations witliPH20 (the “HYLENEX Partnership”). Under thertes of
the HYLENEX Partnership, Baxter paid the Compamparefundable upfront payment of $10.0 million. Da¢he
Company’s continuing involvement obligations (faaeple, support activities associated with rHuPa&2gyme),
the $10.0 million upfront payment was deferred snlgeing recognized over the term of the HYLENEXtRership
The Company recognized revenue from the upfrontea under the HYLENEX Partnership in the amouffits o
approximately $586,000 for the years ended Dece®be2009 and 2008 and $516,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

In addition, Baxter will make payments to the Compbased on sales of the products covered under the
HYLENEX Partnership. Baxter has prepaid a totabbd®.0 million of such product-based payments imeation
with the execution of the HYLENEX Partnership. Tgrepaid product-based payments are deferred artibarg
recognized as product sales revenues as the Comspany such revenues from the sales of HYLENEX axté&.

7. Stockholders Equity

Issuance of Common Stoek In June 2009, the Company issued 6,150,000 shaoesronon stock in a publ
offering at a price of $6.50 per share, generaimgroximately $38.2 million in net proceeds.

During 2009, the Company issued an aggregate @83192 shares of common stock in connection wigh th
exercises of stock purchase warrants (3,140,78@slah a weighted average price of $2.05 per shetagk options
(717,322 shares at a weighted average price oR$fedshare) and restricted stock awards (120,68€s at a pric
of $0.001 per share) for cash in the aggregate atrafwapproximately $7.2 million.

During 2008, the Company issued an aggregate dB3/&0 shares of common stock in connection wi¢h th
exercises of stock purchase warrants (1,628,37#sl@ a weighted average price of $1.06 per shetmmk options
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(1,828,836 shares at a weighted average price.66%fer share) and restricted stock awards (19B8fes at a
price of $0.001 per share) for cash in the aggeegatount of approximately $2.6 million.

In April 2007, the Company entered into a defirgtatock purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agre&ment
with New River Management V, LP (“New River”). Unde terms of the Purchase Agreement, New River
purchased 3,500,000 newly-issued shares of the @wy'gpcommon stock for an aggregate price of apprately
$32.1 million. The sale of the shares was complatéday 2007. The Company has agreed to file asteggion
statement upon demand with the SEC covering tteeed these shares.

In February 2007, an affiliate of Baxter purcha2di¥ 0,394 shares of the Company’s common stocérfor
aggregate price of approximately $20.0 million.

During 2007, the Company issued an aggregate 86357 shares of common stock in connection wigh th
exercises of stock purchase warrants (1,783,852sla a weighted average price of $1.29 per shatagk options
(1,707,705 shares at a weighted average price.00%er share) and restricted stock awards (105bafes at a
price of $0) for cash in the aggregate amount pf@admately $4.0 million.

Warrants — In connection with the October 2004 private plaent, the Company issued warrants to purchase
2,709,542 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$2.25 per share. These warrants were exbleisatil
October 12, 2009. As of December 31, 2009 and 20@8d 1,927,715, respectively, of these warraetew
outstanding.

In connection with the January 2004 private placattbe Company issued warrants to purchase
8,094,829 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$1.75 per share, as amended. These warrants w
exercisable until January 28, 2009 and were calbplthe Company under certain conditions. As afdbeber 31,
2009 and 2008, 0 and 1,302,941, respectively,afdtlwarrants were outstanding.

8. Equity Incentive Plans

The Company currently has six equity incentive pléhe “Plans”): the 2008 Stock Plan, the 2008 {dats
Directors’ Stock Plan, the 2006 Stock Plan, the20@itside Directors’ Stock Plan, the 2004 StockRad the
2001 Stock Plan. All of the Plans were approvedheystockholders.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coyngiaamted sharbased awards under the 2008 Stock |
and the 2008 Outside Directors’ Stock Plan. The gamy had an aggregate of 18,100,000 shares of carstnok
reserved for issuance as of December 31, 200Shd3ktshares, 7,804,266 shares were subject taoditsg) option
and 4,026,751 shares were available for futuretgmainshare-based awards. At the present time, gesament
intends to issue new common shares upon the egarti&ock options and restricted stock awards.

Stock Options. Options are subject to terms and conditions éstaddl by the Compensation Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Options have a tefre years and generally vest at the rate of 2B&year from
the grant date and monthly thereafter until théomstare fully vested over four years. Certainaptwards provid
for accelerated vesting if there is a change irtrobas defined in the Plans).
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A summary of the Company’s stock option award égtias of and for the years ended December 31,,2009
2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Shares Weighted Weighted Aggregate
Underlying Average Exercise Average Remaining Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share  Contractual Term (yrs) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 8,637,32. $1.12
Grantec 1,029,88: $8.0¢
Exercisec (1,732,56) $1.11
Cancelled/forfeitet (124,65) $1.81
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,809,97! $2.08
Grantec 1,513,65I $5.7¢
Exercisec (1,857,47)) $0.5¢
Cancelled/forfeitec (211,36¢) $7.6(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,254,78! $3.02
Grantec 1,519,40! $6.41
Exercisec (717,32) $1.42
Cancelled/forfeitec (252,609 $6.11
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,804,261 $3.7¢ 6.4 $19.7 millior
Vested and expected to vest at
December 31, 200 7,526,58I $3.6: 6.3 $19.7 millior
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 5,202,94 $2.4¢ 5.2 $19.0 millior

The weighted average graai&te fair values of options granted during the yesided December 31, 2009, 2
and 2007 were $3.72 per share, $3.39 per shar$48d per share, respectively. As of December 3292
approximately $6.8 million of total unrecognizedgensation costs related to non-vested stock opti@rds is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedpof approximately 2.7 years. The intrinsicueabf options
exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007 was approximately $3.9 million, $8iBion
and $13.5 million, respectively. Cash received figiotk option exercises for the years ended DeceB81he2009,
2008 and 2007 was approximately $1.0 million, $808,and $1.7 million, respectively.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertomoopt
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”) that uses dssumptions noted in the following table. Expectelatility is
based on historical volatility of the Company’s aoon stock and its peer group. The expected teraptibns
granted is based on analyses of historical empltgraeination rates and option exercises. The rigk-interest rate
is based on the U.S. Treasury yield for a periatsistent with the expected term of the option feafat the time ¢
the grant. The dividend yield assumption is basethe expectation of no future dividend paymentshiay
Company. Assumptions used in the Black-Scholes ineeee as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Expected volatility 65.(% 65.(% 70.(%
Average expected term (in yea 5.t 5.5 5.C
Risk-free interest rat 1.65-2.73% 1.2€-3.1046 3.5-4.7%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%

F-16




Table of Contents

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

The following table summarizes information for datgling and exercisable options as of Decembe2®19:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average  Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Number Average

Number Contractual Exercise  Vestedand Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding Life in Years Price Exercisable Price
$0.39 2,209,72! 3.9 $0.3¢ 2,209,721  $0.3¢
$0.40- $2.83 1,671,07: 5.4 $2.17 1,595,390 $2.1t
$2.84- $5.81 1,380,07! 75 $4.8¢ 746,85 $4.5¢
$5.82- $10.37 2,543,39! 8.€ $7.0¢ 650,97¢ $8.01
7,804,26! 6.4 $3.7¢  5202,94  $2.4¢

Restricted stock awardsRestricted stock awards are grants that entidehblder to acquire shares of restric
common stock at a fixed price, which is typicallyminal. The shares of restricted stock cannot b ptedged, or
otherwise disposed of until the award vests andusmmwested shares may be reacquired by the Comparlyef
original purchase price following the awardee’srigration of service. Annual grants of restricteacktunder the
Outside Directors’ Stock Plans typically vest ifi fhe first day the awardee may trade the Compmaaidck in
compliance with the Company’s insider trading ppficllowing the date immediately preceding thetfaanual
meeting of stockholders following the grant date.

In May 2008, the Company granted certain emplog&es00 performance-based restricted stock awards
(“Performance Awards”), for a purchase price ofd®Q per share, under the 2008 Stock Plan. All ef th
Performance Awards became fully vested upon achiemt of certain development performance milestoitera
in September 2009. The Company recognized appraéeiyn$231,000 and $201,000 of share-based compensat
expense related to the Performance Awards duriagelar ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respgctive

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@dd, the Company issued 120,000, 192,500 and Q05,0
restricted stock awards, respectively, under tH@82&tock Plan, 2008 Outside Directors’ Stock Plath 2005
Outside Directors’ Stock Plan. The following tablemmarizes the Company’s unvested restricted stoitkity
during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@0id:

Weighted Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 20 90,00( $ 2.7z
Granted 105,00( $10.37
Vested (90,000 $ 2.72
Forfeited — $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2C 105,00( $10.37
Granted 192,50( $ 4.94
Vested (105,00() $10.3i
Forfeited — $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2C 192,50( $ 4.94
Granted 120,00 $ 5.81
Vested (192,50() $ 4.94
Forfeited — $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2C 120,00( $ 5.81
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The total grant-date fair value of restricted staekards vested during the years ended Decemb&089,and
2008 was approximately $951,000 and $1.1 milliespectively. As of December 31, 2009, total unraceg
compensation cost related to unvested shares vpasxamately $247,000, which is expected to be rectey over
weighted-average period of approximately 4 months.

9. Commitments and Contingencie:

Operating Leases— The Company’s administrative offices and rededacilities are located in San Diego,
California. The Company leases an aggregate obappately 58,000 square feet of office and reseapzte.

In July 2007, the Company entered into a sublegsseaent with Avanir Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Avénior
Avanir's excess leased facilities located at 11388&ento Valley Road, San Diego, California (th&3&8
Sublease”) for 27,575 square feet of office anéaesh space. The 11388 Sublease expired in Augost 2s a
result, in July 2007, the Company entered intcaadeagreement (the “Lease”) with BC Sorrento, LB
Sorrento”) for these facilities through January 20Rayment obligations under the Lease commenc8dptember
2008 after the obligations in the short-term 11388lease had concluded. Under the terms of theel #aes initial
monthly rent payment was approximately $37,0000hebsts and property taxes associated with theatipa and
maintenance of the leased facilities, commencingaptember 2008 and increased to approximatelyY08@3tartin
in March 2009. Thereafter, the annual base resulligect to approximately 4% annual increases eaah y
throughout the term of the Lease. Under terms®lLibase and 11388 Sublease, the Company recotdedra
improvement allowance of approximately $276,000 faed rent totaling approximately $794,000 as defirent,
of which approximately $758,000 and $870,000 wakitfed in deferred rent as of December 31, 2002808,
respectively.

In July 2007, the Company also entered into a sisel@agreement with Avanir for Avanir's excess ldase
facilities located at 11404 Sorrento Valley Roaaln ®iego, California (the “11404 Sublease”) forlB4 square
feet of office and research space for a monthly pagment of approximately $54,000, net of costs pioperty
taxes associated with the operation and maintenainte subleased facilities. The 11404 Subleap@exin
January 2013. The annual base rent is subjectpim=imately 4% annual increases each year througheuerms
of the 11404 Sublease. In addition, the Compangived free rent totaling approximately $492,000wbfch
approximately $355,000 and $418,000 was includateferred rent as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

In January 2009, the Company entered into a suleasd agreement with Sirion Therapeutics, Inc.rigs?), a
subtenant of Avanir, for Sirion’s excess subledsedities located at 11408 Sorrento Valley Roaaln ®iego,
California (the “Sub-Sublease”) for 2,000 squaret f&f office and research space. The Sub-Sublegseed in
September 2009 with monthly rent payments of apprately $6,000 commencing in April 2009. As a résial
April 2009, the Company entered into a subleaseaagent with Avanir for 9,187 square feet of thislity (the
“11408 Sublease”), which expires in January 201& monthly rent payments, which commenced in Jgn2@t0,
were approximately $21,000 and are subject to anarincrease of approximately 3%. Under term$ef11408
Sublease, the Company received a tenant improveatiemtance of $75,000, of which approximately $&®,0vas
included in deferred rent at December 31, 2009.

The Company pays a pro rata share of operating,dosurance costs, costs of utilities and reghemy taxes
incurred by Avanir for the subleased facilities.

Additionally, the Company leases certain officeipquent under operating leases. Total rent experse w
approximately $1.4 million, $1.4 million and $1.1llion for the years ended December 31, 2009, 29082007,
respectively.
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Approximate annual future minimum operating leaagnpents as of December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Operating

ﬂ Leases
2010 $1,858,00!
2011 1,920,001
2012 1,992,001
2013 77,00(
Total minimum lease paymer $5,847,00

Material Agreements— In September 2007, the Company entered intGtdmamagard Partnership with
Baxter. Under the terms of the Gammagard PartigrBiaixter obtained a worldwide, exclusive licersedvelop
and commercialize product combinations of rHUPH#@th a current Baxter product, GAMMAGARD LIQUID.
Under the terms of the Gammagard Partnership, Bagid the Company a nonrefundable upfront payroént
$10.0 million. Due to the Company’s continuing ilwement obligations, the $10.0 million upfront pagmbwas
deferred and is being recognized over the termm@f3ammagard Partnership. Pending successful ctomptd a
series of regulatory and sales milestones, Baxégrmake further milestone payments totaling $37lbam to us.
In addition, Baxter will pay royalties on the salésny, of the products that result from the abbration. The
Gammagard Partnership is applicable to both kitfandulation combinations. Baxter assumes all dewelent,
manufacturing, clinical, regulatory, sales and reéirlg costs under the Gammagard Partnership, weél€ompan'
is responsible for the supply of the rHUPH20 enzymaddition, Baxter has certain product developnasd
commercialization obligations in major markets itified in the Gammagard Partnership.

In February 2007, the Company and Baxter amendedliicexisting agreements relating to HYLENEX and
entered into the HYLENEX Partnership, a new agre#rfor kits and formulations with rHuPH20. Undee tterms
of the HYLENEX Partnership, Baxter paid a nonrefailé upfront payment of $10.0 million and, pending
successful completion of a series of regulatory salds events, Baxter will make milestone payments which
could potentially reach a value of up to $25.0imnill In addition, Baxter will make payments to tbempany based
on the sales of products covered under the HYLENPE@Xnership. Baxter has prepaid a total of $10l0omiof
such product-based payments. Baxter also assulrdesvalopment, manufacturing, clinical, regulatsgles and
marketing costs of the products covered by the HMEK Partnership. The Company continues to supplt&a
with the API for HYLENEX, and Baxter fills and fishes HYLENEX and holds it for subsequent distrituitiin
addition, Baxter obtained a worldwide, exclusiwetise to develop and commercialize product conibimabf
rHUPH20 with Baxter hydration fluids and genericairmolecule drugs, with the exception of combioasi with
(i) bisphosphonates, (ii) cytostatic and cytototiemotherapeutic agents and (iii) proprietary smallecule drugs,
the rights to which have been retained by the CamppRaue to the Company’s continuing involvementigdiions,
the $10.0 million upfront payment was deferred @nlokeing recognized over the term of the HYLENEXtRership

In December 2006, the Company and Roche enteredhatRoche Partnership for Enhanze Technologyet
the terms of the Roche Partnership, Roche obtanedridwide, exclusive license to develop and conuiaéze
product combinations of rHUPH20 and up to thirtBerche target compounds resulting from the partigr§toche
paid $20.0 million as an initial upfront license flor the application of rHuPH20 to three pre-defifrRoche
biologic targets. Pending the successful completfom series of clinical, regulatory and sales ¢évgRoche will pa
the Company further milestones which could potdigti@ach a value of up to $111.0 million. In adit, Roche
will pay the Company royalties on product salestii@se first three targets. Through December 309 2Roche has
elected two additional exclusive targets. Througit&nber 2016, Roche will also have the option tduskvely
develop and commercialize rHUPH20 with an additi@ight targets to be identified by Roche, provideat Roche
will be obligated to pay continuing exclusivity m&nance fees to the Company in order to maintsiexclusive
development rights for these targets. For eacheftditional ten targets, Roche
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may pay the Company further upfront and milestcengpents of up to $47.0 million per target, as aslroyalties
on product sales for each of these additionaldegets. Additionally, Roche will obtain accesstie Company’s
expertise in developing and applying rHUPH20 tolRotargets. Under the terms of the Roche Partrertdta
Company was obligated to scale up the productiaflaPH20 and to identify a second source manufacthiat
would help meet anticipated production obligatianising from the partnership. To that end, durif@&, the
Company entered into a Technology Transfer Agre¢mmed a Clinical Supply Agreement with a second”RHR0
manufacturer. This manufacturer has the capacipyaduce the quantities the Company was requirelliver
under the terms of the Roche Partnership. The tdaby transfer was completed in 2008. In 2009, iplgtbatches
of rHUPH20 were produced to support planned futlirécal studies.

In August 2008, the Company entered into a ClinBigbply Agreement (the “Cook Agreement”) with Cook
Pharmica LLC (“Cook”). Under the terms of the Codreement, Cook will manufacture certain batchethefAPI
that will be used in clinical trials of certain phact candidates.

In December 2006, the Company amended its Comnh&wgfply Agreement (the “Amendment”) with Avid
Bioservices, Inc. (“Avid”) which was originally esrted into in February 2005. Under the terms ofAhendment,
the Company is committed to certain minimum anqpueaithases of API equal to two quarters of forechstgply.
In addition, Avid has the right to manufacture angply a certain percentage of the API that willlsed in the
Company’s HYLENEX and Cumulase products. At Decen#de 2009, the Company has a minimum purchase
obligation of approximately $1.0 million.

Legal Contingencies— From time to time the Company is involved indkgctions arising in the normal
course of its business. The Company is not pressabject to any material litigation nor, to managat’'s
knowledge, is any litigation threatened againstGbenpany that collectively is expected to have #enie adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated cash flowsrftial condition or results of operations.

10. Income Taxes

Significant components of the Company’s net detktax assets at December 31, 2009 and 2008 arenshow
below. A valuation allowance of $75.1 million andi9$6 million has been established to offset thede&trred tax
assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, resggctgaealization of such assets is uncertain.

2009 2008

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 42,253,000 $25,466,00

Deferred revenu 18,370,00 14,566,00

Research and development cre 12,175,00 7,775,000

Shar+based compensatic 1,171,00! 929,00(

Depreciatior 327,00( 80,00(

Other, ne 789,00( 743,00(
Total deferred tax asse 75,085,00 49,559,00
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (75,085,00) (49,559,00)
Net deferred tax asse $ — 3 —
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The provision for income taxes on earnings sulifgaicome taxes differs from the statutory fed@mabme tax
rate at December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, duesttotiowing:

2009 2008 2007

Federal income tax rate of 34 $(19,843,00) $(16,544,00) $ (8,125,00
State income tax, net of federal ben (3,405,00i) (2,839,000 (1,394,00i)
Research and development cre (4,464,00i) (3,099,00) (2,133,00i)
Tax effect on no-deductible expenses and ot 2,186,001 2,445,001 857,00(
Increase in valuation allowan 25,526,00 20,037,00 10,795,00
Benefit due to refundable R&D cre( — (63,000 —
$ — $ (63,000 $ =

At December 31, 2009, the Company had federal adiflothia tax net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $121.2 million and $125.1 millionspectively. Included in these amounts are fedemdl@alifornia
net operating losses of approximately $15.7 millttnibutable to stock option deductions of whibh tax benefit
will be credited to equity when realized. The fedend California tax loss carryforwards will beginexpire in
2018 and 2012, respectively, unless previouslyzetil.

At December 31, 2009, the Company also had fe@@cICalifornia research and development tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $8.9 million and @®illion, respectively. The federal research aadafopment
tax credits will begin to expire in 2024 unlessvoesly utilized. The California research and depehent tax
credits will carryforward indefinitely until utilizd.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382rthaal use of the net operating loss carryforwards
research and development tax credits could bedaiy any greater than 50% ownership change dangghree-
year testing period. As a result of any such owhiprshange, portions of the Comp/s net operating loss
carryforwards and research and development tavitsraxt subject to annual limitations. The Compeomypleted a
Section 382 analysis regarding the limitation & tiet operating losses and research and develomnegtits as of
December 31, 2009. Based upon the analysis, thep@wyrdetermined that ownership changes occurrpdan
years. However, the annual limitations on net ojpegdoss and research and development tax cradiyforwards
will not have a material impact on the future atfion of such carryforwards.

Interest and/or penalties related to uncertainrimetax positions are recognized by the Company as a
component of income tax expense. For the yearsdeRdeember 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company did not
recognize any interest or penalties.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S. iangarious state jurisdictions. The Company’s taang for
1998 and forward are subject to examination byt and California tax authorities due to the yamvard of
unutilized net operating losses and research avelaf@ment credits.

11. Employee Savings Plai

The Company has an employee savings plan pursu&@wdtion 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. dlha
allows participating employees to deposit intodaferred investment accounts up to 90% of theargabubject to
annual limits. The Company is not required to matdetching contributions under the plan. However,Goepany
voluntarily contributed to the plan approximateBi7#,000, $0 and $0 in the years ended Decemb&08®8, 2008
and 2007, respectively.

12. Related Party Transactions

In July 2007, the Company entered into the 11388ease with Avanir for Avanir's excess leased fties in
San Diego, California. The 11388 Sublease expimefligust 2008. As a result, in July 2007, the Comypentered
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into the Lease with BC Sorrento for these fac#itierough January 2013. Connie L. Matsui, a direatohe
Company, and her husband have a controlling owigeisterest in an entity that holds a minority owstép
position in BC Sorrento. In addition, this entityrently serves as the managing member of BC Sarréihe
transaction with BC Sorrento was reviewed and ammdoy the Company’s Board of Directors in accoodawith
the Company’s related party transaction policy. Thase commenced in September 2008. The Compad\Bgai
Sorrento approximately $1.2 million, $281,000 afdd@ the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 @did, 2
respectively.

In December 2006, Halozyme entered into a licegseeanent with a related party, Nektar Therapeutics
Corporation (“Nektar”) under which the Company oial a license to certain intellectual properthtgyand
proprietary technology of Nektar. Dr. John Pat@mmember of the ComparsyBoard of Directors, was an emplo’
and director of Nektar at the time this agreemeas wxecuted. Effective January 1, 2009, Dr. Pattsnno longer
an employee or director of Nektar. The Company pealltar approximately $73,000 and $75,000 for thary
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company entered into the Purchase AgreemehtNetw River on April 23, 2007, under which it sold
3,500,000 shares of its common stock to New RiVke transaction under the Purchase Agreement ctosed
May 31, 2007. Randal J. Kirk, an affiliate of Neuw&, was appointed to the Company’s Board of Doecon
May 15, 2007. There were no other material transastetween Mr. Kirk and the Company for the yearded
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

13. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of the Company’s unaedliguarterly statement of operations data derixeu f
unaudited consolidated financial statements inaudehe Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q:

Quarters Ended

2009 (Unaudited) March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Total revenue $ 2,772,37. $ 1,426,151 $ 3,028,88 $ 6,443,89.
Total operating expens $17,531,11  $18,509,87 $16,968,48  $19,120,09
Net loss $(14,725,36) $(17,060,02) $(13,910,28) $(12,664,85)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0.1¢) % 0.2) % (0.1¢) $ (0.19
Shares used in computing net loss per shar

basic and dilute: 82,429,86 82,990,10 89,570,541 91,488,38

Quarters Ended

2008 (Unaudited) March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Total revenue $ 1,80551¢ $ 1,434,21' $ 2,462,221 $ 3,062,117
Total operating expens $12,638,98 $12,808,78 $13,661,94 $20,089,12
Net loss $(9,953,99) $(11,002,39) $(10,872,15) $(16,825,65)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0.19) $ 0.19 3 (0.1 % (0.2
Shares used in computing net loss per shar

basic and dilute: 78,300,31 79,454,49 80,293,80 81,213,98
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-699833-133829 and 333-152914) and
Form S-3 (Nos. 333-120448 and 333-164215) of Hatez{lherapeutics, Inc. and in the related Prospestoour reports dated March 12,
2010, with respect to the consolidated financialeshents of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., and tfee&@feness of internal control over
financial reporting of Halozyme Therapeutics, Imecluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended December 31, 2009.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Jonathan E. Lim, M.D., Chief Executive Officdridalozyme Therapeutics, Inc. (the “Registrantd,tereby certify in accordance with 18
U.S.C 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 30205arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Halozyme Therapeutics, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatio any untrue statement of a material fact ot torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifie periods presented in this rep

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and han

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgribsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh anc

b) designed such internal control over finahagaorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registaisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusion about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in tkegiRrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Redst’s internal control over financial reportir

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetarainmittee of Registrant’s board of directors gersons performing the equivalent

functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regigd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabirres management or other employees who have His@gn role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 12, 2010 /s/ Jonathan E. Lim, M.D.

Jonathan E. Lim, M.D
President and Chief Executive Offic



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Kurt A. Gustafson, Chief Financial Officer of ldayme Therapeutics, Inc. (the “Registranty, hereby certify in accordance with 18 U.!
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Halozyme Therapeutics, Int

Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfi@ periods presented in this rep

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and han

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh anc

b) designed such internal control over finahaporting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regisgalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusion about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in tkegiRrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regst’s internal control over financial reportir

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetarainmittee of Registrant’s board of directors gersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regigd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refrmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabirres management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 12, 2010 /s/ Kurt A. Gustafson

Kurt A. Gustafson
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form K @er the Year ended December 31, 2(
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jonathahif, M.D., Chief Executive Officer of
the Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nkey Act of 2002, that, to the best of
my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@% U.S.C. 78m); an

(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
the Registrant

Dated: March 12, 2010 /s/ Jonathan E. Lim, M.D.
Jonathan E. Lim, M.D
President and Chief Executive Offic

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form K er the Year ended December 31, 2(
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kurt A. G&fson, Chief Financial Officer of the

Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350adspted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanésy@xt of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@% U.S.C. 78m); an

(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
the Registrant

Dated: March 12, 2010 /s/ Kurt A. Gustafson
Kurt A. Gustafson
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic




